
Jackson County Health Department 
                 Aug. 3 -10, 2022 

 

COVID-19 
Data 
More in depth data can be 
found on the JACOHD 
dashboard. 

 

JACOHD 
• Total Cases –  75,524 
• Total Deaths – 807 

Totals by Week: 
• Cases – 583 
• Deaths – 1 

 
**Note: Cases from Independence, MO have been removed 
from the Jackson County Health Department data dashboard. 
There has been a delay in data reporting from the state level. 
Therefore, these data are provisional and are subject to change.  

Current 
Outbreaks 

Addington Place of Lee’s Summit – 22 
Cross Creek at Lee’s Summit – 29 
Hidden Lake Care Center – 21 
Ignite Medical Resort Blue Springs – 25 
Ignite Medical Resort St. Mary’s – 7 
Jackson County Detention Center – 28 

John Knox Village Care Center – 45 
John Knox Village Valley View – 22 
Lee’s Summit Pointe – 21 
Life Care Cener of Grandview – 24 
Silverado Lee’s Summit Memory Care – 5 
 
**Outbreaks are considered concluded after two incubation 
periods (28 days) since the onset date of the last case of COVID-
19, and are thus removed from the list. 

JACOHD/ 
Jackson 
County 
Vaccine Data 
Jackson County vaccine data 
can be found here.  
 

JACOHD 
• Total doses administered – 89,667 

 
Jackson County  

• 71.9% of Jackson County residents have initiated vaccination; 58.4% have 
completed vaccination 

o Jackson County Population: 703,011 
• 505,438 people have received at least one dose; 410,880 people are fully 

vaccinated  
 
** On April 1, 2022, Missouri updated its data dashboard and removed COVID-19 vaccine data. The COVID-19 vaccine data 
reflected is from the CDC’s website, which encompasses all of Jackson County, including Kansas City and Independence. 

JACOHD/UH 
Sponsored 
Testing 

Thursday, Aug. 11, 2022 
Friday, Aug. 12, 2022 
Monday, Aug. 15, 2022 
Tuesday, Aug. 16, 2022 
 
Symptomatic Testing: 

9 a.m. – 3 p.m. – 313 S Liberty St, Independence 
9 a.m. – 3 p.m. – 313 S Liberty St, Independence 
9 a.m. – 3 p.m. – 313 S Liberty St, Independence 
9 a.m. – 3 p.m. – 313 S Liberty St, Independence 
 
Call 816-404-2273 

JACOHD 
Vaccine 
Clinics 

Thursday, Aug. 11, 2022 
Friday, Aug. 12, 2022 
Monday, Aug. 15, 2022 
Tuesday, Aug. 16, 2022 
 

9 a.m. – 6 p.m. – 313 S Liberty St, Independence 
9 a.m. – 4 p.m. – 313 S Liberty St, Independence  
9 a.m. – 6 p.m. – 313 S Liberty St, Independence 
9 a.m. – 6 p.m. – 313 S Liberty St, Independence 
 
Residents can visit jacohd.org/events to find clinic registration and walk-in hours. 

PPE Supply The supply rate meets the demand rate. 

JCDC Testing JACOHD is continually working with JCDC on reporting and investigation. 

Regional 
Coordination 
Meetings 

Health Care Coalition Steering Committee Meeting, Public Health Risk Communication 
Coordination Meeting, Hospitals & Public Health Meeting, Communicable Disease COVID-
19 Update Meeting, Missouri Center for Public Health Excellence Meeting, Public Health 
Coordination Meeting, Public Health Directors Meeting, Multi Agency Coordination 
Resource Section Support Meeting, Community Organizations Active in Disaster Meeting 

 

https://jacohd.org/data-dashboard/
https://jacohd.org/data-dashboard/
https://covidvaccine.mo.gov/data/
https://covid.cdc.gov/covid-data-tracker/#county-view?list_select_state=all_states&null=Vaccinations
http://jacohd.org/events


Posted:  8/9/2022 12:44 PM 

 

                                                       
COUNTY LEGISLATURE 

JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 

MARY JO SPINO 
 
 

CLERK OF THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE           
415 East 12th Street     201 West Lexington, 2nd Floor 
Kansas City, MO 64106     Independence, MO 64050 
                                                                              
                                                                                    

August 12 – August 18, 2022 
 
 

8-12-2022 Friday  NO MEETINGS –  
 

8-15-2022 Monday  NO ANTI-CRIME, FINANCE & AUDIT, HEALTH & 
ENVIRONMENT, INTER-GOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS, 
JUSTICE & LAW ENFORCEMENT, LAND USE, RULES 
OR 911 OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 
 

  9:50 A.M. Budget Committee Meeting – 
Jackson County Courthouse, 415 East 12th Street, 
2nd Floor, Kansas City Legislative Assembly Area 
 

  9:55 A.M. Public Works Committee Meeting – 
Jackson County Courthouse, 415 East 12th Street, 
2nd Floor, Kansas City Legislative Assembly Area 
 

 10:00 A.M. LEGISLATIVE MEETING - 
Jackson County Courthouse, 415 East 12th Street, 
2nd Floor, Kansas City Legislative Assembly Area 
 

8-16-2022 Tuesday  
 

NO MEETINGS –  
 

8-17-2022 Wednesday  
 

NO MEETINGS – 

8-18-2022 Thursday 10:00 A.M. Pension Plan Board of Trustees Meeting – 
Meeting will be held via Zoom. For more information contact, 
Maria Leathers at mleathers@jacksongov.org 
 

 5:15 P.M. Ethics, Human Relations & Citizen Complaints 
Commission Meeting –Meeting will be held via Zoom. For 
more information contact, Anita Mackrel at 
amackrel@jacksongov.org.   

 
Persons with disabilities wishing to participate in the above meetings and who require a reasonable accommodation may 
call the County Clerk’s Office at 881-3242 or 1-800-735-2466 (Missouri Relay).  Forty-eight (48) hour notice is required. 
To put information on Activity Calendar, please contact the County Clerk’s Office by NOON Wednesday of each week. 

 

mailto:mleathers@jacksongov.org
mailto:amackrel@jacksongov.org


IN THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 
AN ORDINANCE amending the zoning districts established pursuant to the Unified 
Development Code by rezoning a certain 12.58+ acre tract from District AG (Agricultural) 
to District RE (Residential Estates) and approving the preliminary plat “Old Major 
Estates,” creating a four-lot residential subdivision.  
 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 5640, August 15, 2022 
 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the County Legislature of Jackson County, Missouri as follows: 

 

Section 1. The Zoning Order of Jackson County, Missouri, and the official maps which 

are a part thereof, are amended by changing the boundaries of the "AG" (Agricultural) 

and “RE” (Residential Estates) Districts, so that there will be transferred from District AG 

to District RE a tract of land legally described as follows: 

 
Part of the South 25 acres of the Northwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter and the 
Northeast quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 15, Township 48 North, Range 30 
West,  Jackson County, Missouri, being further described as follows: commencing at the 
southwest corner of the southwest quarter of said section 15; thence North 01 degrees 
54 minutes 36 seconds East, along the West line of said Southwest Quarter, a distance 
of 722.84 feet to the Southwest corner of the Northwest Quarter of said Southwest 
Quarter; thence South 87 degrees 50 minutes 11 seconds East, along the South line of 
the Northwest Quarter of said Southwest Quarter, a distance of 30.00 feet to the to the 
East right of way line of Enochs Mills Road, said point also being the Point of Beginning 
of the tract of land to be herein described; thence North 01 degrees 54 minutes 36 
seconds East, a distance of 779.18 feet to a point on the North line of the South 25 acres 
of the Northwest Quarter of said Southwest Quarter; thence South 87 degrees 50 minutes 
11 seconds East, along said line, a distance of 703.14 feet; thence South 01 degrees 54 
minutes 36 seconds West, a distance of 779.18 feet to a point on the South line of the 
Northwest Quarter of said Southwest Quarter; thence North 87 degrees 50 minutes 11 
seconds West, along said line, a distance of 703.14 feet to the Point of Beginning. 
Containing 547,861 square feet or 12.58 acres. 
 
 
Section 2. The Preliminary Plat “Old Major Estates,” creating a four-lot residential 

subdivision, is hereby approved. 



 

-2- 

 
 
Section 3. The Legislature, pursuant to the application of Harold Herman (RZ-2022-635), 

requesting the amendment embodied in this Ordinance and with notice that the Jackson 

County Plan Commission voted 9 to 0 to recommend APPROVAL of this application after 

a public hearing on July 21, 2022, does hereby adopt this Ordinance pursuant to the 

Jackson County Charter authorizing the Legislature to exercise legislative power 

pertaining to planning and zoning. 





Request for Legislative Action 

August 4, 2022 eRLA #600 Page 1 of 3 

Completed by County Counselor’s Office 

Action Requested: Ordinance Res.Ord No.: 5640 

Sponsor(s):  Legislature Meeting Date: 8/15/2022 

Introduction 

Action Items: ['Authorize'] 

Project/Title: 

Harold Herman - RZ-2022-635 

Request Summary 

Requesting a change of zoning from District AG (Agricultural) on 12.58 ± acres to District RE (Residential 
Estates). The purpose is to create four single-family residential lots at Old Major and Enochs Mills Roads 
and requesting approval of the preliminary plat of “Old Major Estates” creating four (4) lot residential 
subdivision. 

Staff recommends approval because the change in zoning is consistent with the intent and purpose of 
the County Plan and complies with the Unified Development Code requirements.   
The Jackson County Plan Commission held a public hearing on July 21, 2022, and accepted testimony 
pertaining to the rezoning request. 
The Plan Commission voted 9 to 0 to recommend APPROVAL to the County Legislature. 

Contact Information 

Department: Public Works Submitted Date: 7/29/2022 

Name: Randy D. Diehl Email: RDiehl@jacksongov.org 

Title: Development Division 
Administrator 

Phone: 816-881-4577

Budget Information 

Amount authorized by this legislation this fiscal year: $   0 

Amount previously authorized this fiscal year: $   0 

Total amount authorized after this legislative action: $  

Is it transferring fund? No 

Single Source Funding: 

Fund: Department: Line Item Account: Amount: 

!Unexpected End of
Formula 

Ordinance No.: 5640
Date: August 15, 2022



Request for Legislative Action 

August 4, 2022 eRLA #600 Page 2 of 3 

Prior Legislation 

Prior Ordinances 

Ordinance: Ordinance date: 

Prior Resolution 

Resolution: Resolution date: 

Purchasing 

Does this RLA include the purchase or lease of 
supplies, materials, equipment or services? 

No 

Chapter 10 Justification: 

Core 4 Tax Clearance Completed: 

Certificate of Foreign Corporation Received: 

Have all required attachments been included in 
this RLA? 

Compliance 

Certificate of Compliance 

Not Applicable 

Minority, Women and Veteran Owned Business Program 

Goals Not Applicable for following reason: Not spending money 

MBE:   .00% 

WBE:   .00% 

VBE:   .00% 

Prevailing Wage 

Not Applicable 

Fiscal Information 

 This legislative action does not impact the County financially and does not require
Finance/Budget approval.



Request for Legislative Action 

August 4, 2022 eRLA #600 Page 3 of 3 
 

History 

Submitted by Public Works requestor: Randy D. Diehl on 7/29/2022. Comments: Land Use scheduled for 
August 22. 
 
Approved by Department Approver Brian Gaddie on 8/1/2022 4:13:24 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Not applicable by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 8/1/2022 4:42:41 PM. 
Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Compliance Office Approver Katie M. Bartle on 8/2/2022 4:14:05 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Not applicable by Budget Office Approver Mark Lang on 8/3/2022 9:17:32 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Executive Office Approver Sylvya Stevenson on 8/3/2022 9:42:54 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Counselor's Office Approver Elizabeth Freeland on 8/4/2022 3:20:01 PM. Comments: 
 

 



RZ-2022-635 
 
ATTACHMENT 1: PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
 
Description:  
 
Part of the South 25 acres of the Northwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter and the 
Northeast quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 15, Township 48 North, Range 30 
West,  Jackson County, Missouri, being further described as follows: commencing at the 
southwest corner of the southwest quarter of said section 15; thence North 01 degrees 
54 minutes 36 seconds East, along the West line of said Southwest Quarter, a distance 
of 722.84 feet to the Southwest corner of the Northwest Quarter of said Southwest 
Quarter; thence South 87 degrees 50 minutes 11 seconds East, along the South line of 
the Northwest Quarter of said Southwest Quarter, a distance of 30.00 feet to the to the 
East right of way line of Enochs Mills Road, said point also being the Point of Beginning 
of the tract of land to be herein described; thence North 01 degrees 54 minutes 36 
seconds East, a distance of 779.18 feet to a point on the North line of the South 25 
acres of the Northwest Quarter of said Southwest Quarter; thence South 87 degrees 50 
minutes 11 seconds East, along said line, a distance of 703.14 feet; thence South 01 
degrees 54 minutes 36 seconds West, a distance of 779.18 feet to a point on the South 
line of the Northwest Quarter of said Southwest Quarter; thence North 87 degrees 50 
minutes 11 seconds West, along said line, a distance of 703.14 feet to the Point of 
Beginning. Containing 547,861 square feet or 12.58 acres. 
 
 



RZ-2022-635 
 
ATTACHMENT 2: ZONING SUPPORT DOCUMENTATION 
 
Attachments 
 
Plan Commission Public Hearing Summary from July 21, 2022 
Staff Report 
Zoning map of surrounding area 
Names/Addresses of Surrounding Property Owners 
Copy of letter to said property owners 
Application 
Aerial of location 
Preliminary Plat 
  
 

 



 
 
Randy Diehl gave the staff report: 
 
RE:  RZ-2022-635 
 
Applicant:    

 
Location: Old Major and Enochs Mills Roads 
  
Area: 12.58 ± acres   
 
Request: Change of zoning from District AG (Agricultural) to District RE 
 (Residential Estates)  
   
Purpose:      The purpose is to create four single-family residential lots 

 
Current Land Use and Zoning in the Area: 

 
The zoning in the area is predominately Agricultural. The land use is 
single family residences. There are developments of similar lots sizes in 
the surrounding area, the majority were created prior to the adaptation of 
the Unified Development Code (UDC) in 1995. 
 
The applicant owns approximately 34 acres. The rezoning request is for 
12.58 acres which will become the four lots. The remaining acreage will 
be shown on the plat as two 10-acre tracts and will remain with District 
AG (Agricultural). Tract A contains an existing residence and an 
accessory dwelling.  
 
Each lot will be served by an on-site wastewater system. There are no 
concerns with driveway locations for each lot.  
 
County Plan:  

 
The County Plan Development Diagram illustrates this area within the 
Suburban Development Tier (SDT).   
 

Recommendation: 
 

This request for rezoning is consistent with the intent and purpose of the 
County Plan.   

 
 Staff recommends APPROVAL of RZ-2022-635. 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
            
      Jackson County Public Works  

Development Division 
Randy Diehl, Administrator 

 

 

 

 



 

 
Mr. Antey: Are there any questions for Randy? 
 
Mr. Akins: Those to the East are the 10-acre tracts? 
 
Mr. Diehl: Yes.   
 
Mr. Crawford: Are there any line of site issues?  
 
Mr. Diehl: No. It appears that each lot will have full access along the roads they 
front. 
 
Mr. Tarpley: Is the back 10-acre land locked? 
 
Mr. Diehl: No. There is a 30-foot strip for access.  
 
Mr. Akins: What are the restrictions on lot sizes? 
 
Mr. Diehl: The minimum lot width is 180 feet for Residential Estates. These four  
lots meet the minimum requirements. The 10 acre tracts are not subject to the 
subdivision regulations.    
 
Mr. Antey: Is the applicant here? 
 
Steve Wargner: 6127 NW Pine Ridge Circle, Parkville, MO 
I’m the Civil Engineer for Mr., Herman. We are in agreement with the staff report.  
 
Mr. Tarpley: Will these all be on septic? 
 
Mr. Wargner: Yes. 
 
Mr. Antey: Do you have anything to add to the report? 
 
Mr. Wargner: We agree with the staff report.   
 
Mr. Antey: Is there anyone else who is in favor of this application? 
 
There were none. 
 
Mr. Antey: Is there anyone who is opposed or has questions regarding this  
application? 
 
Donna Burrows: 8122 Enochs Mills Road, Grain Valley. Regarding the drainage, 
I own property on this (west) side of the road where the culvert is located. What 
type of septic systems will these be? 
 
Mr. Antey: Those will be determined by testing the soil prior to building permits 
being issued. It will take an engineer to design the individual systems. There 
shouldn’t be any runoff from a septic system.  



Mr. Tarpley: Once these lots start growing tuff grass, that will slow runoff as well.  
 
Tracy Harris: 8115 Enochs Mills Road, Grain Valley. We own an adjacent 
property. Will these properties be sold as is or will they be built on and them 
sold?  
 
Mr. Antey: We can’t answer that question. I believe the intent is to sell them to be 
built on.  
 
Mr. Wargner: We are selling the lots. We are not building spec homes.  
 
Mr. Crawford: Are you going to have restrictions for these lots?  
 
Mr. Wargner: Yes. 
 
Harold Herman: 31105 E. Old Major Road, Grain Valley. We are going to record 
restrictions that state that no pre-manufactured homes will be allowed. Homes 
sizes will be a minimum of 1400 square feet.  
 
Mr. Johnson: Will you allow shop houses or barnominiums?  
 
Mr. Herman: We are considering that.  
 
John Britt: 31100 E. Old Major Road, Grain Valley. Our concern is what is going 
to happen with these 10-acre tracts?  
 
Mr. Antey: They will remain zoned Agricultural since than are 10 acres or larger 
in size.  
 
Mr. Diehl: The front tract has an existing home. The one in the back will be able 
to have a single-family home built on it.  
 
Catherin Britt: 31100 E. Old Major Road, Grain Valley. The former owners 
brother said that it would not be sold to a developer, and it wouldn’t be 
developed.  
 
Mr. Antey: We can’t control what a person wants to do with their land. He is 
before us to divide off a portion of what he owns. You can have a private 
conversation with the owner about their intentions regarding the other property 
outside this hearing. We cannot regulate something like grass mowing outside of 
what is before us today.  
 
Motion to take under advisement. 
 
Mr. Lake moved to take under advisement. Mr. Tarpley seconded. 
 
Discussion under advisement 
 
Mr. Tarpley moved to approve. Mr. Hilliard seconded. 
 



 
Mr. Akins  Approve 
Mr. Tarpley  Approve 
Mr. Johnson  Approve 
Mr. Crawford  Approve 
Mr. Hilliard  Approve 
Ms. Ryerkerk  Approve 
Mr. Farrar  Approve 
Mr. Lake  Approve 
Chairman Antey Approve 
 
Motion Carried   9 – 0  
 

 
Approval of Preliminary Plat of Old Major Estates 
 
Motion to take under advisement. 
 
Mr. Tarpley moved to take under advisement. Mr. Lake seconded. 
Mr. Akins  Approve 
Mr. Tarpley  Approve 
Mr. Johnson  Approve 
Mr. Crawford  Approve 
Mr. Hilliard  Approve 
Ms. Ryerkerk  Approve 
Mr. Farrar  Approve 
Mr. Lake  Approve 
Chairman Antey Approve 
 

Motion Carried   9 – 0  
 

























IN THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 

AN ORDINANCE amending the zoning districts established pursuant to the Unified 
Development Code by rezoning a certain 5.00+ acre tract from District AG (Agricultural) 
to District RR (Residential Ranchette). 

ORDINANCE NO. 5641, August 15, 2022 

BE IT ORDAINED by the County Legislature of Jackson County, Missouri as follows: 

Section 1. The Zoning Order of Jackson County, Missouri, and the official maps which 

are a part thereof, are amended by changing the boundaries of the "AG" (Agricultural) 

and “RR” (Residential Ranchette) Districts, so that there will be transferred from District 

AG to District RR a tract of land legally described as follows: 

All that part of the East Half of the Southeast Quarter of Section 30, Township 51 North, 
Range 30 West, in Jackson County, Missouri, more fully described as follows: 
Commencing at the Southeast corner of the said Southeast Quarter of Section 30; thence 
North 87 degrees 38 minutes 54 seconds West along the South line of the Southeast 
Quarter of said Section 30, a distance of 276.08 feet to the Point of Beginning; thence 
North 87 degrees 38 minutes 54 seconds West, along said South line, 258.90 feet; thence 
North 03 degrees 19 minutes 56 seconds East, 828.89 feet; thence South 87 degrees 38 
minutes 54 seconds East, 260.30 feet to the Northwest corner of Lot 1, Cathy Acres 
Subdivision, a subdivision in Jackson County, Missouri; thence South 03 degrees 25 
minutes 45 seconds West along the West line of said Lot 1 and the prolongation thereof, 
828.92 feet to the Point of Beginning, except that part in roads. 

Section 2. The Legislature, pursuant to the application of Matthew B. Gillpatrick (RZ-2022-

633), requesting the amendment embodied in this Ordinance and with notice that the 

Jackson County Plan Commission voted 9 to 0 to recommend APPROVAL of this 

application after a public hearing on July 21, 2022, does hereby adopt this Ordinance 

pursuant to the Jackson County Charter authorizing the Legislature to exercise legislative 

power pertaining to planning and zoning. 





Request for Legislative Action 

August 4, 2022 eRLA #598 Page 1 of 3 

Completed by County Counselor’s Office 

Action Requested: Ordinance Res.Ord No.: 5641 

Sponsor(s): Legislature Meeting Date: 8/15/2022 

Introduction 

Action Items: ['Authorize'] 

Project/Title: 

Matthew B Gillpatrick – RZ-2022-633 

Request Summary 

Requesting a change of zoning from District AG (Agricultural) on 5.00 ± acres to District RR (Residential 
Ranchette). The purpose is to create a single-family residential lot at 27412 E. Atherton Sibley Road. 

Staff recommends approval because the change in zoning is consistent with the intent and purpose of 
the County Plan and complies with the Unified Development Code requirements.   
The Jackson County Plan Commission held a public hearing on July 21, 2022, and accepted testimony 
pertaining to the rezoning request. 
The Plan Commission voted 9 to 0 to recommend APPROVAL to the County Legislature. 

Contact Information 

Department: Public Works Submitted Date: 7/29/2022 

Name: Randy D. Diehl Email: RDiehl@jacksongov.org 

Title: Development Division 
Administrotor 

Phone: 816-881-4577

Budget Information 

Amount authorized by this legislation this fiscal year: $   0 

Amount previously authorized this fiscal year: $   0 

Total amount authorized after this legislative action: $  

Is it transferring fund? No 

Single Source Funding: 

Fund: Department: Line Item Account: Amount: 

!Unexpected End of
Formula 

Ordinance No.:  5641
Date:  August 15, 2022



Request for Legislative Action 

August 4, 2022 eRLA #598 Page 2 of 3 
 

Prior Legislation 

Prior Ordinances 

Ordinance: Ordinance date: 

  

Prior Resolution 

Resolution: Resolution date: 

  

 

Purchasing 

Does this RLA include the purchase or lease of 
supplies, materials, equipment or services? 

No 

Chapter 10 Justification:  

Core 4 Tax Clearance Completed:  

Certificate of Foreign Corporation Received:  

Have all required attachments been included in 
this RLA? 

 

 

Compliance 

Certificate of Compliance 

Not Applicable 

Minority, Women and Veteran Owned Business Program 

Goals Not Applicable for following reason: Not spending money 

MBE:    .00%  

WBE:    .00%  

VBE:     .00%  

Prevailing Wage 

Not Applicable  

 

Fiscal Information 

 This legislative action does not impact the County financially and does not require 
Finance/Budget approval. 
 

 



Request for Legislative Action 

August 4, 2022 eRLA #598 Page 3 of 3 
 

History 

Submitted by Public Works requestor: Randy D. Diehl on 7/29/2022. Comments: Scheduled for Land Use 
on August 22. 
 
Approved by Department Approver Brian Gaddie on 8/1/2022 4:14:18 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Not applicable by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 8/1/2022 4:42:11 PM. 
Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Compliance Office Approver Katie M. Bartle on 8/2/2022 4:14:57 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Not applicable by Budget Office Approver Mark Lang on 8/3/2022 9:17:56 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Executive Office Approver Sylvya Stevenson on 8/3/2022 9:41:41 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Counselor's Office Approver Elizabeth Freeland on 8/4/2022 3:13:45 PM. Comments: 
 

 



RZ-2022-633 
 
ATTACHMENT 1: PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
 
Description:  
 
All that part of the East Half of the Southeast Quarter of Section 30, Township 51 North, 
Range 30 West, in Jackson County, Missouri, more fully described as follows: 
Commencing at the Southeast corner of the said Southeast Quarter of Section 30; 
thence North 87 degrees 38 minutes 54 seconds West along the South line of the 
Southeast Quarter of said Section 30, a distance of 276.08 feet to the Point of 
Beginning; thence North 87 degrees 38 minutes 54 seconds West, along said South line, 
258.90 feet; thence North 03 degrees 19 minutes 56 seconds East, 828.89 feet; thence 
South 87 degrees 38 minutes 54 seconds East, 260.30 feet to the Northwest corner of 
Lot 1, Cathy Acres Subdivision, a subdivision in Jackson County, Missouri; thence South 
03 degrees 25 minutes 45 seconds West along the West line of said Lot 1 and the 
prolongation thereof, 828.92 feet to the Point of Beginning, except that part in road.  



RZ-2022-633 
 
ATTACHMENT 2: ZONING SUPPORT DOCUMENTATION 
 
Attachments 
 
Plan Commission Public Hearing Summary from July 21, 2022 
Staff Report 
Zoning map of surrounding area 
Names/Addresses of Surrounding Property Owners 
Copy of letter to said property owners 
Application 
Aerial of location 
Certificate of Survey 2009 
  
 

 



 
Randy Diehl gave the staff report: 
 
RE:  RZ-2022-633 
 
Applicant:   Matthew B Gillpatrick 

 
Location: 27412 E Atherton Sibley Road 
  
Area: 5.00 ± acres   
 
Request: Change of zoning from District AG (Agricultural) to District RR 
 (Residential Ranchette)  
   
Purpose:      Applicant is requesting the change in zoning to create a single-family 

residential lot.  
 

Current Land Use and Zoning in the Area: 
 
The zoning in the area is predominately Agricultural. Cathy Acres, directly 
to the east, was rezoned to District RR and platted in 2000.  
 
Land Use is primarily single-family residences on various sized tracts.  
 
This tract was created by a Certificate of Survey filed in 2009. The 
applicant is wishing to construct a single-family residence and needs to 
bring to property into compliance with the Unified Development Code. 
Tracts less than 10 acres in size for residential purposes must be rezoned 
and platted to allow for development permits to be issued.  

   
  County Plan:  
 

The County Plan Development Diagram illustrates this area within the 
Rural Development Tier (RDT).   
 

Recommendation: 
 

This request for rezoning is consistent with the intent and purpose of the 
County Plan.   

 
 Staff recommends APPROVAL of RZ-2022-633. 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
            
      Jackson County Public Works  

Development Division 
Randy Diehl, Administrator 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Mr. Antey: Are there any questions for Randy? 
 
There were none. 
 
Mr. Antey: Is the applicant here? 
 
Mat Gillpatrick, 310 Prairie St, Buckner. 
 
Mr. Antey: Do you have anything to add to the report? 
 
Mr. Gillpatrick: No.  
 
Mr. Antey: Is there anyone else who is in favor of this application? 
 
There were none. 
 

Mr. Antey: Is there anyone who is opposed or has questions regarding this  
application? 
 
There were none 
 

Motion to take under advisement. 
 
Mr. Tarpley moved to take under advisement. Mr. Lake seconded. 
 
Discussion under advisement 
 
Mr. Tarpley moved to approve. Mr. Lake seconded. 
 
Mr. Akins  Approve 
Mr. Tarpley  Approve 
Mr. Johnson  Approve 
Mr. Crawford  Approve 
Mr. Hilliard  Approve 
Ms. Ryerkerk  Approve 
Mr. Farrar  Approve 
Mr. Lake  Approve 
Chairman Antey Approve 
 
Motion Carried   9 – 0  
 

























IN THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 

AN ORDINANCE amending the zoning districts established pursuant to the Unified 
Development Code by rezoning a certain 10.00+ acre tract from District AG (Agricultural) 
to District RR (Residential Ranchette). 

ORDINANCE NO. 5642, August 15, 2022 

BE IT ORDAINED by the County Legislature of Jackson County, Missouri as follows: 

Section 1. The Zoning Order of Jackson County, Missouri, and the official maps which 

are a part thereof, are amended by changing the boundaries of the "AG" (Agricultural) 

and “RR” (Residential Ranchette) Districts, so that there will be transferred from District 

AG to District RR a tract of land legally described as follows: 

All that part of Tract B, Certificate of Survey recorded as document number 
1995I1320735, being situated in the Southwest Quarter of Section 7, Township 47, Range 
29, Jackson County, Missouri, described as follows: Commencing at the Southeast corner 
of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 7; thence North 87 degrees 47 minutes 09 
Seconds West, along the South line of said Southwest Quarter, 484.46 feet to the 
Southeast corner of said Tract B, said corner being the Point of Beginning of the tract to 
be described herein: Thence North 87 degrees 47 minutes 09 Seconds West, along the 
South the South line of said Southwest Quarter and along the South line of said Tract B, 
566.20 feet; thence North 02 degrees 11 minutes 53 seconds West, 826.70 feet; thence 
South 87 degrees 48 minutes 07 seconds East, parallel with the North line of the 
Southeast Quarter, 559.22 feet to the East line of said tracts; thence; South 01 degrees 
43 minutes 02 seconds West, along the East line of said Tract B, 826.89 feet to the Point 
of Beginning, except that part in roads. 

Section 2. The Legislature, pursuant to the application of Serina & Phillip Maring (RZ-

2022-634), requesting the amendment embodied in this Ordinance and with notice that 

the Jackson County Plan Commission voted 9 to 0 to recommend APPROVAL of this 

application after a public hearing on July 21, 2022, does hereby adopt this Ordinance 

pursuant to the Jackson County Charter authorizing the Legislature to exercise legislative 
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power pertaining to planning and zoning. 





Request for Legislative Action 

August 4, 2022 eRLA #599 Page 1 of 3 

Completed by County Counselor’s Office 

Action Requested: Ordinance Res.Ord No.: 5642 

Sponsor(s):  Legislature Meeting Date: 8/15/2022 

Introduction 

Action Items: ['Authorize'] 

Project/Title: 

Serina & Phillip Maring – RZ-2022-634 

Request Summary 

Requesting a change of zoning from District AG (Agricultural) on 10.00 ± acres to District RR (Residential 
Ranchette). The purpose is to create two single-family residential lots at the 36100 block of E. Bynum 
Spur.      

Staff recommends approval because the change in zoning is consistent with the intent and purpose of 
the County Plan and complies with the Unified Development Code requirements.   
The Jackson County Plan Commission held a public hearing on July 21, 2022, and accepted testimony 
pertaining to the rezoning request. 
The Plan Commission voted 9 to 0 to recommend APPROVAL to the County Legislature. 

Contact Information 

Department: Public Works Submitted Date: 7/29/2022 

Name: Randy D. Diehl Email: RDiehl@jacksongov.org 

Title: Development Division 
Administrator 

Phone: 816-881-4577

Budget Information 

Amount authorized by this legislation this fiscal year: $   0 

Amount previously authorized this fiscal year: $   0 

Total amount authorized after this legislative action: $  

Is it transferring fund? No 

Single Source Funding: 

Fund: Department: Line Item Account: Amount: 

!Unexpected End of
Formula 

Ordinance No.:  5642
Date:  August 15, 2022



Request for Legislative Action 

August 4, 2022 eRLA #599 Page 2 of 3 
 

Prior Legislation 

Prior Ordinances 

Ordinance: Ordinance date: 

  

Prior Resolution 

Resolution: Resolution date: 

  

 

Purchasing 

Does this RLA include the purchase or lease of 
supplies, materials, equipment or services? 

No 

Chapter 10 Justification:  

Core 4 Tax Clearance Completed:  

Certificate of Foreign Corporation Received:  

Have all required attachments been included in 
this RLA? 

 

 

Compliance 

Certificate of Compliance 

Not Applicable 

Minority, Women and Veteran Owned Business Program 

Goals Not Applicable for following reason: Not spending money 

MBE:    .00%  

WBE:    .00%  

VBE:     .00%  

Prevailing Wage 

Not Applicable  

 

Fiscal Information 

 This legislative action does not impact the County financially and does not require 
Finance/Budget approval. 
 

 



Request for Legislative Action 

August 4, 2022 eRLA #599 Page 3 of 3 
 

History 

Submitted by Public Works requestor: Randy D. Diehl on 7/29/2022. Comments: Land Use scheduled for 
August 22. 
 
Approved by Department Approver Brian Gaddie on 8/1/2022 4:13:48 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Not applicable by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 8/1/2022 4:41:43 PM. 
Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Compliance Office Approver Katie M. Bartle on 8/2/2022 4:15:38 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Not applicable by Budget Office Approver Mark Lang on 8/3/2022 9:18:22 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Executive Office Approver Sylvya Stevenson on 8/3/2022 9:41:06 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Counselor's Office Approver Elizabeth Freeland on 8/4/2022 3:18:04 PM. Comments: 
 

 



RZ-2022-634 
 
ATTACHMENT 1: PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
 
Description:  
 
All that part of Tract B, Certificate of Survey recorded as document number 
1995I1320735, being situated in the Southwest Quarter of Section 7, Township 47, 
Range 29, Jackson County, Missouri described as follows: Commencing at the 
Southeast corner of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 7; thence North 87 degrees 
47 minutes 09 Seconds West, along the South line of said Southwest Quarter, 484.46 
feet (survey = 484.46 feet) to the Southeast corner of said Tract B, said corner being the 
Point of Beginning of the tract to be described herein: Thence North 87 degrees 47 
minutes 09 Seconds West, along the South the South line of said Southwest Quarter 
and along the South line of said Tract B, 566.20 feet; thence North 02 degrees 11 
minutes 53 seconds West, 826.70 feet; thence South 87 degrees 48 minutes 07 
seconds East, parallel with the North line of the Southeast Quarter, 559.22 feet to the 
East line of said tracts; thence ; South 01 degrees 43 minutes 02 seconds West, along 
the East line of said Tract B, 826.89 feet to the Point of Beginning. Except part in road.  



RZ-2022-634 
 
ATTACHMENT 2: ZONING SUPPORT DOCUMENTATION 
 
Attachments 
 
Plan Commission Public Hearing Summary from July 21, 2022 
Staff Report 
Zoning map of surrounding area 
Names/Addresses of Surrounding Property Owners 
Copy of letter to said property owners 
Application 
Aerial of location 
Preminlary Plat 
  
 

 



 
 
Randy Diehl gave the staff report: 
 
RE:  RZ-2022-634 
 
Applicant:   Phillips M & Serina N Maring 

 
Location: 36100 Block of Bynum Spur 
  
Area: 10.00 ± acres   
 
Request: Change of zoning from District AG (Agricultural) to District RR 
 (Residential Ranchette)  
   
Purpose:      Two single family residential lots 

 
Current Land Use and Zoning in the Area: 

 
Zoning in the area is both agricultural and residential. There are five 
developments established after the adoption of the UDC that are all in 
District RR.   
 
Land Use are family residences.    
The applicants have purchased a 10-acre tract (Tract 2) from a recently 
divided 30-acre tract. They are wanting to divide the 10 acres into two lots 
of 5 acres apiece. 
 
County Plan:  

 
The County Plan Development Diagram illustrates this area within the 
Rural Development Tier (RDT).   
 

Recommendation: 
 

This request for rezoning is consistent with the intent and purpose of the 
County Plan.   

 
 Staff recommends APPROVAL of RZ-2022-634. 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
            
      Jackson County Public Works  

Development Division 
Randy Diehl, Administrator 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Mr. Antey: Are there any questions for Randy? 
 
Mr. Tarpley: Where will the access be? 
 
Mr. Diehl: The access limits have already been approved by our Engineering Division. 
The allowed access will be at a point at the common corner at the lots.  
 
Mr. Tarpley: Will they share a driveway? 
 
Mr. Diehl: The choice is up to them to share or have separate driveways.   
 
Mr. Antey: Is the applicant here? 
 
Serina Maring, 1300 SW Morningside Drive, Blue Springs.  
 
Mr. Antey: Do you have anything to add to the report? 
 
Ms. Maring: We have applied for the driveway permit and installed.   
 
Mr. Antey: Is there anyone else who is in favor of this application? 
 
There were none. 
 

Mr. Antey: Is there anyone who is opposed or has questions regarding this  
application? 
 
There were none 
 

Motion to take under advisement. 
 
Mr. Lake moved to take under advisement. Mr. Tarpley seconded. 
 
Discussion under advisement 
 
Mr. Hilliard moved to approve. Mr. Lake seconded. 
 
Mr. Akins  Approve 
Mr. Tarpley  Approve 
Mr. Johnson  Approve 
Mr. Crawford  Approve 
Mr. Hilliard  Approve 
Ms. Ryerkerk  Approve 
Mr. Farrar  Approve 
Mr. Lake  Approve 
Chairman Antey Approve 
 
Motion Carried   9 – 0  
 

 

























IN THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 
AN ORDINANCE amending the zoning districts established pursuant to the Unified 
Development Code by rezoning a certain 1.00+ acre tract from District AG (Agricultural) 
to District RS (Residential Suburban). 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 5643, August 15, 2022 
 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the County Legislature of Jackson County, Missouri as follows: 

 

Section 1. The Zoning Order of Jackson County, Missouri, and the official maps which 

are a part thereof, are amended by changing the boundaries of the "AG" (Agricultural) 

and “RS” (Residential Suburban) Districts, so that there will be transferred from District 

AG to District RS a tract of land with a street address of 13010 SE Howard Road, legally 

described as follows: 

 
Lot 45, Trophy Estates, a subdivision in Jackson County, Missouri 
 
 
Section 2. The Legislature, pursuant to the application of Mary T. Vargas (RZ-2022-

632), requesting the amendment embodied in this Ordinance and with notice that the 

Jackson County Plan Commission voted 9 to 0 to recommend APPROVAL of this 

application after a public hearing on July 21, 2022, does hereby adopt this Ordinance 

pursuant to the Jackson County Charter authorizing the Legislature to exercise 

legislative power pertaining to planning and zoning. 





Request for Legislative Action 

August 4, 2022 eRLA #597 Page 1 of 3 

Completed by County Counselor’s Office 

Action Requested: Ordinance Res.Ord No.: 5643 

Sponsor(s):  Legislature Meeting Date: 8/15/2022 

Introduction 

Action Items: ['Authorize'] 

Project/Title: 

Mary T. Vargas - RZ-2022-632 

Request Summary 

Requesting a change of zoning from District AG (Agricultural) on 1.00 ± acres to District RS (Residential 
Suburban). The purpose is to decrease the building setback lines for future construction at 13010 SE 
Howard Road. 

Staff recommends approval because the change in zoning is consistent with the intent and purpose of 
the County Plan and complies with the Unified Development Code requirements.   
The Jackson County Plan Commission held a public hearing on July 21, 2022, and accepted testimony 
pertaining to the rezoning request. 
The Plan Commission voted 9 to 0 to recommend APPROVAL to the County Legislature. 

Contact Information 

Department: Public Works Submitted Date: 7/29/2022 

Name: Randy D. Diehl Email: RDiehl@jacksongov.org 

Title: Development Division 
Administrator 

Phone: 816-881-4577

Budget Information 

Amount authorized by this legislation this fiscal year: $   0 

Amount previously authorized this fiscal year: $   0 

Total amount authorized after this legislative action: $  

Is it transferring fund? No 

Single Source Funding: 

Fund: Department: Line Item Account: Amount: 

!Unexpected End of
Formula 

Ordinance No.:  5643
Date:  August 15, 2022



Request for Legislative Action 

August 4, 2022 eRLA #597 Page 2 of 3 

Prior Legislation 

Prior Ordinances 

Ordinance: Ordinance date: 

Prior Resolution 

Resolution: Resolution date: 

Purchasing 

Does this RLA include the purchase or lease of 
supplies, materials, equipment or services? 

No 

Chapter 10 Justification: 

Core 4 Tax Clearance Completed: 

Certificate of Foreign Corporation Received: 

Have all required attachments been included in 
this RLA? 

Compliance 

Certificate of Compliance 

Not Applicable 

Minority, Women and Veteran Owned Business Program 

Goals Not Applicable for following reason: Not spending money 

MBE:   .00% 

WBE:   .00% 

VBE:   .00% 

Prevailing Wage 

Not Applicable 

Fiscal Information 

 This legislative action does not impact the County financially and does not require
Finance/Budget approval.



Request for Legislative Action 

August 4, 2022 eRLA #597 Page 3 of 3 
 

History 

Submitted by Public Works requestor: Randy D. Diehl on 7/29/2022. Comments: Scheduled for Land Use 
on August 22. 
 
Approved by Department Approver Brian Gaddie on 8/1/2022 4:14:43 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Not applicable by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 8/1/2022 4:41:09 PM. 
Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Compliance Office Approver Katie M. Bartle on 8/2/2022 4:16:39 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Not applicable by Budget Office Approver Mark Lang on 8/3/2022 9:18:52 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Executive Office Approver Sylvya Stevenson on 8/3/2022 9:40:33 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Counselor's Office Approver Elizabeth Freeland on 8/4/2022 2:55:02 PM. Comments: 
 

 



RZ-2022-632 
 
ATTACHMENT 1: PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
 
Description:  
 
Lot 45, Trophy Estates, a subdivision in Jackson County, Missouri   



RZ-2022-632 
 
ATTACHMENT 2: ZONING SUPPORT DOCUMENTATION 
 
Attachments 
 
Plan Commission Public Hearing Summary from July 21, 2022 
Staff Report 
Zoning map of surrounding area 
Names/Addresses of Surrounding Property Owners 
Copy of letter to said property owners 
Application 
Aerial of location 
Site Plan 
  
 

 



 
 
Randy Diehl gave the staff report: 
 
RE:  RZ-2022-632 
 
Applicant:   Mary T Vargas 
 

Location: Lot 45, Trophy Estates, 13010 SE Howard Road 
 
Area: 1.00 ± acres   
 
Request: Change of zoning from District AG (Agricultural) to District RS 
 (Residential Suburban)  
 
Purpose:      Applicant is requesting the change in zoning in order to decrease the 

building setback lines requirements for future construction.    
 
Current Land Use and Zoning in the Area: 
 

The zoning in the area is predominately Agricultural. The land use within 
the platted subdivision is single family residences. Trophy Estates was 
platted in 1977 and 1979. The Zoning Order (adopted in 1960) in place at 
the did not require a change in zoning for platted lots. Therefore, Trophy 
Estates is within District AG (Agricultural).   
 
Twelve lots have been rezoned in this development for the same purpose 
as this application.  
 
The West side yard setback will be reduced from 50 to 20 feet. The side 
yard setbacks will be reduced from 30 to 15 feet. The East side yard will 
remain at 75 feet as that setback was established on the recorded plat.   
 
County Plan:  
 
The County Plan Development Diagram illustrates this area within the 
Urban Development Tier (UDT).   
 

Recommendation: 
 

This request for rezoning is consistent with the intent and purpose of the 
County Plan.   
 

 Staff recommends APPROVAL of RZ-2022-632. 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
            
      Jackson County Public Works  

Development Division 
Randy Diehl, Administrator 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Mr. Antey: Are there any questions for Randy? 
 
There were none. 
 
Mr. Antey: Is the applicant here? 
 
Mary Vargas, 13013 SE Howard Road 
 
Mr. Antey: Do you have anything to add to the report? 
 
Ms. Vargas: No 
 
Mr. Tarpley: What type of building are you planning? 
 
Ms. Vargas: A garage. 
 
Mr. Antey: Is there anyone else who is in favor of this application? 
 
There were none. 
 
Mr. Antey: Is there anyone who is opposed or has questions regarding this  
application? 
 
There were none. 
 
Motion to take under advisement. 
 
Mr. Tarpley moved to take under advisement. Mr. Lake seconded. 
 
Discussion under advisement 
 
Mr. Hilliard moved to approve. Mr. Farrar seconded. 
 
Mr. Akins  Approve 
Mr. Tarpley  Approve 
Mr. Johnson  Approve 
Mr. Crawford  Approve 
Mr. Hilliard  Approve 
Ms. Ryerkerk  Approve 
Mr. Farrar  Approve 
Mr. Lake  Approve 
Chairman Antey Approve 
 
Motion Carried   9 – 0  
 



 
STAFF REPORT  
 
PLAN COMMISSION 
July 21, 2022 
 
RE:  RZ-2022-632 
 
Applicant:   Mary T Vargas 

 
Location: Lot 45, Trophy Estates13010 SE Howard Road 
  
Area: 1.00 ± acres   
 
Request: Change of zoning from District AG (Agricultural) to District RS 
 (Residential Suburban)  
   
Purpose:      Applicant is requesting the change in zoning in order to decrease the 

building setback lines requirements for future construction.    
 

Current Land Use and Zoning in the Area: 
 
The zoning in the area is predominately Agricultural. The land use within 
the platted subdivision is single family residences. Trophy Estates was 
platted in 1977 and 1979. The Zoning Order (adopted in 1960) in place at 
the did not require a change in zoning for platted lots. Therefore, Trophy 
Estates is within District AG (Agricultural).   
 
Twelve lots have been rezoned in this development for the same purpose 
as this application.  
 
The West side yard setback will be reduced from 50 to 20 feet. The side 
yard setbacks will be reduced from 30 to 15 feet. The East side yard will 
remain at 75 feet as that setback was established on the recorded plat.   
 
County Plan:  

 
The County Plan Development Diagram illustrates this area within the 
Urban Development Tier (UDT).   
 

Recommendation: 
 

This request for rezoning is consistent with the intent and purpose of the 
County Plan.   

 
 Staff recommends APPROVAL of RZ-2022-632. 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
            
      Jackson County Public Works  

Development Division 
Randy Diehl, Administrator 





















IN THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 
AN ORDINANCE amending the zoning districts established pursuant to the Unified 
Development Code by rezoning a certain 4.00± acre tract from District AG (Agricultural) 
to District RE (Residential Estates). 
 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 5644, August 15, 2022 
 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the County Legislature of Jackson County, Missouri as follows: 

 

Section 1. The Zoning Order of Jackson County, Missouri, and the official maps which 

are a part thereof, are amended by changing the boundaries of the "AG" (Agricultural) 

and “RE” (Residential Estates) Districts, so that there will be transferred from District AG 

to District RE a tract of land, located at 23700 NE Colbern Road, in Jackson County, MO, 

legally described as follows: 

 
All that part of the Southwest quarter of the Northeast quarter of Section 26, Township 48 
north, Range 31 west. In Jackson County, Missouri, and being more fully described as 
follows: 
Beginning at a point on the north right of way line of Colbern Road, said point being 40.00 
feet north and South 87 degrees 44 minutes 46 seconds East (this bearing and all 
following bearings being state plane grid north as established using r. T.k. g.p.s. 
equipment, and referenced to Kansas City metro control station ja-149), 334.80 feet from 
the Southwest corner of the Northeast Quarter of Section 26, Township 48 North, Range 
31 West; thence along a line parallel with the west line of the Northeast Quarter of said 
Section 26, North 02 degrees 08 minutes 16 seconds East said line also being the east 
line of Colborn & Cyclone Road Estates a subdivision in Jackson County, Missouri, for a 
distance of 1242.27 feet to the south line of J. Morgan Meadows, a subdivision in Jackson 
County, Missouri; thence along the south line of said subdivision; South 87 degrees 47 
minutes 10 seconds East, 660.00 feet to a point on the west line of lot 10 of Colborn & 
Cyclone Road Estates 2nd plat, a subdivision in Jackson County, Missouri; thence along 
the west line of said subdivision South 02 degrees 08 minutes 16 seconds West 1242. 73 
feet to a point on the north right of way line of Colbern Road (40. 00 feet north of the south 
line of the northeast quarter of said section 26); thence along the north line of said Colbern 
Road north 87 degrees 44 minutes 46 seconds west, 660.00 feet to the point of beginning. 
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Section 2. The Legislature, pursuant to the application of James and Gina Suelke (RZ-

2022-636), requesting the amendment embodied in this Ordinance and with notice that 

the Jackson County Plan Commission voted 9 to 0 to recommend APPROVAL of this 

application after a public hearing on July 21, 2022, does hereby adopt this Ordinance 

pursuant to the Jackson County Charter authorizing the Legislature to exercise legislative 

power pertaining to planning and zoning. 





Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2022 eRLA #601 Page 1 of 3 

Completed by County Counselor’s Office 

Action Requested: Ordinance Res.Ord No.: 5644 

Sponsor(s):  Legislature Meeting Date: 8/15/2022 

Introduction 

Action Items: ['Authorize'] 

Project/Title: 

James & Gina Stuelke - RZ-2022-636 

Request Summary 

Requesting a change of zoning from District AG (Agricultural) on 4.00 ± acres to District RE (Residential 
Estates). The purpose is to create a single-family residential lot at 23700 NE Colbern Road.Staff 
recommends approval because the change in zoning is consistent with the intent and purpose of the 
County Plan and complies with the Unified Development Code requirements.   

The Jackson County Plan Commission held a public hearing on July 21, 2022, and accepted testimony 
pertaining to the rezoning request. 
The Plan Commission voted 9 to 0 to recommend APPROVAL to the County Legislature. 

Contact Information 

Department: Public Works Submitted Date: 7/29/2022 

Name: Randy D. Diehl Email: RDiehl@jacksongov.org 

Title: Development Division 
Administrator 

Phone: 816-881-4577

Budget Information 

Amount authorized by this legislation this fiscal year: $   0 

Amount previously authorized this fiscal year: $   0 

Total amount authorized after this legislative action: $  

Is it transferring fund? No 

Single Source Funding: 

Fund: Department: Line Item Account: Amount: 

!Unexpected End of
Formula 

Ord. #5644
Date: August 15, 2022



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2022 eRLA #601 Page 2 of 3 

Prior Legislation 

Prior Ordinances 

Ordinance: Ordinance date: 

Prior Resolution 

Resolution: Resolution date: 

Purchasing 

Does this RLA include the purchase or lease of 
supplies, materials, equipment or services? 

No 

Chapter 10 Justification: 

Core 4 Tax Clearance Completed: 

Certificate of Foreign Corporation Received: 

Have all required attachments been included in 
this RLA? 

Compliance 

Certificate of Compliance 

Not Applicable 

Minority, Women and Veteran Owned Business Program 

Goals Not Applicable for following reason: Not spending money 

MBE:   .00% 

WBE:   .00% 

VBE:   .00% 

Prevailing Wage 

Not Applicable 

Fiscal Information 

 This legislative action does not impact the County financially and does not require
Finance/Budget approval.



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2022 eRLA #601 Page 3 of 3 

History 

Submitted by Public Works requestor: Randy D. Diehl on 7/29/2022. Comments: Land Use scheduled for 
August 22. 

Approved by Department Approver Brian Gaddie on 8/1/2022 4:13:04 PM. Comments: 

Not applicable by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 8/1/2022 4:43:15 PM. 
Comments: 

Approved by Compliance Office Approver Katie M. Bartle on 8/2/2022 4:13:14 PM. Comments: 

Not applicable by Budget Office Approver Mark Lang on 8/3/2022 9:17:03 AM. Comments: 

Approved by Executive Office Approver Sylvya Stevenson on 8/3/2022 11:18:38 AM. Comments: 

Returned for more information by Counselor's Office Approver Elizabeth Freeland on 8/4/2022 1:18:49 
PM. Comments:  Public hearing date. 

Submitted by Requestor Randy D. Diehl on 8/4/2022 1:24:28 PM. Comments:  Corrected Plan 
Commission Vote from 7-0 to 9-0 

Approved by Department Approver Brian Gaddie on 8/4/2022 2:47:04 PM. Comments: 

Not applicable by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 8/4/2022 3:21:36 PM. 
Comments: 

Approved by Compliance Office Approver Katie M. Bartle on 8/5/2022 12:34:00 PM. Comments: 

Not applicable by Budget Office Approver Mark Lang on 8/5/2022 4:28:49 PM. Comments: 

Approved by Executive Office Approver Sylvya Stevenson on 8/8/2022 9:41:49 AM. Comments: 

Approved by Counselor's Office Approver Elizabeth Freeland on 8/10/2022 10:07:56 AM. Comments: 



RZ-2022-636 

ATTACHMENT 1: PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

Description: 

All that part of the Southwest quarter of the Northeast quarter of Section 26, Township 
48 north, Range 31 west. In Jackson County, Missouri, and being more fully described 
as follows:  

Beginning at a point on the north right of way line of Colbern Road, said point being 
40.00 feet north and South 87 degrees 44 minutes 46 seconds East (this bearing and all 
following bearings being state plane grid north as established using r. T.k. g.p.s. 
equipment, and referenced to Kansas City metro control station ja-149), 334.80 feet from 
the Southwest corner of the Northeast Quarter of Section 26, Township 48 North, Range 
31 West; thence along a line parallel with the west line of the Northeast Quarter of said 
Section 26, North 02 degrees 08 minutes 16 seconds East said line also being the east 
line of Colborn & Cyclone Road Estates a subdivision in Jackson county, Missouri, for a 
distance of 1242.27 feet to the south line of J. Morgan Meadows a subdivision in 
Jackson County, Missouri; thence along the south line of said subdivision; South 87 
degrees 47 minutes 10 seconds East, 660.00 feet to a point on the west line of lot 10 of 
Colborn & Cyclone Road Estates 2nd plat, a subdivision in Jackson County, Missouri; 
thence along the west line of said subdivision South 02 degrees 08 minutes 16 seconds 
West 1242. 73 feet to a point on the north right of way line of Colbern Road (40. 00 feet 
north of the south line of the northeast quarter of said section 26); thence along the north 
line of said Colbern Road north 87 degrees 44 minutes 46 seconds west, 660.00 feet to 
the point of beginning. 



RZ-2022-636 
 
ATTACHMENT 2: ZONING SUPPORT DOCUMENTATION 
 
Attachments 
 
Plan Commission Public Hearing Summary from July 21, 2022 
Staff Report 
Zoning map of surrounding area 
Names/Addresses of Surrounding Property Owners 
Copy of letter to said property owners 
Application 
Aerial of location 
Preliminary Plat 
  
 

 



 
 
 
 
Randy Diehl gave the staff report: 
 
RE:  RZ-2022-636 
 
Applicant:   James & Gina Stuelke 

 
Location: 23700 E Colbern Road 
  
Area: 4.00 ± acres   
 
Request: Change of zoning from District AG (Agricultural) to District RE 
 (Residential Estates)  
   
Purpose:      Creating a single-family residential lot   

 
Current Land Use and Zoning in the Area: 

 
The zoning in the area is predominately Agricultural. Development 
around the subject property was developed prior to the adoption of the 
Unified Development Code in 1995.  
 
Land use is single family residences. Across Colbern Road is the City 
of Lee’s Summit Legacy Park.  
 
The applicant is wishing to separate the existing residence within the 
4.00-acre lot. The remaining acreage will become a separate tract that 
would allow construction of a dwelling.  
 
The subdivision plat “Flamingo Acres” is under review. An additional 
driveway would more than likely be allowed. Sharing the existing 
entryway would an option to reduce any additional driveways onto 
Colbern Road. 
 
County Plan:  

 
The County Plan Development Diagram illustrates this area within the 
Urban Development Tier (UDT).   
 

Recommendation: 
 

This request for rezoning is consistent with the intent and purpose of 
the County Plan.   

 
 Staff recommends APPROVAL of RZ-2022-636. 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
           
       Jackson County Public Works
  

Development Division 
Randy Diehl, Administrator 

 

 

 
 



 
Mr. Antey: Are there any questions for Randy? 
 
Mr. Tarpley: What’s the total acreage? 
 
Mr. Diehl: 18.83 acres. Four acres is the request with 14.83 acres remaining within 
District AG – Agricultural.  
 
Discussion regarding the current parcel lines and the new proposed lines.  
 
Mr. Johnson: Are those ponds affluent ponds? 
 
Mr. Diehl: No. 
 
Mr. Antey: Is the applicant here? 
 
Don Roberts: 15905 E 78th Street, Kansas City. I represent the Stuelkes.  
 
Mr. Antey: Do you have anything to add to the report? 
 
Mr. Roberts: We do hope to have a second driveway instead of sharing the one that 
serves the existing residence.  
 
Mr. Antey: Is there anyone else who is in favor of this application? 
 
There were none. 
 

Mr. Antey: Is there anyone who is opposed or has questions regarding this  
application? 
 
Sandra Cutler, 23803 E 92nd Terr, Lee’s Summit. What is the smaller piece zoned 
now? 
 
Mr. Antey: Agricultural. All new development under 10 acres is subject to this 
process. There are other properties created prior to the code that are grandfathered 
in under Ag zoning.  
 
Mr. Crawford: The ordinance we are under was adopted in 1995.  
 

Motion to take under advisement. 
 

Mr. Tarpley moved to take under advisement. Mr. Lake seconded. 
 
Discussion under advisement 
 
Mr. Lake moved to approve. Mr. Hilliard seconded. 
 

Mr. Akins  Approve 
Mr. Tarpley  Approve 
Mr. Johnson  Approve 
Mr. Crawford  Approve 
Mr. Hilliard  Approve 
Ms. Ryerkerk  Approve 
Mr. Farrar  Approve 
Mr. Lake  Approve 
Chairman Antey Approve                 Motion Carried   9 – 0  

























IN THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 

AN ORDINANCE amending the zoning districts established pursuant to the Unified 
Development Code by rezoning a certain 5.00+ acre tract from District AG (Agricultural) 
to District RR (Residential Ranchette). 

ORDINANCE NO. 5645, August 15, 2022 

BE IT ORDAINED by the County Legislature of Jackson County, Missouri as follows: 

Section 1. The Zoning Order of Jackson County, Missouri, and the official maps which 

are a part thereof, are amended by changing the boundaries of the "AG" (Agricultural) 

and “RR” (Residential Ranchette) Districts, so that there will be transferred from District 

AG to District RR a tract of land legally described as follows: 

A tract of land in the Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 32, Township 48 
North, Range 29 West in Jackson County, Missouri, described as follows:  Commencing 
at the Southeast corner of said 1/4 1/4 section; thence North 88 degrees 00 minutes 17 
seconds West along the South line of said 1/4 1/4 section, a distance of 689.50 feet; 
thence North 1°-51’-19” East, a distance of 25.00 feet to the north right of way line of 
Cline Road, as now established; thence North 88 degrees 00 minutes 17 seconds West 
along said north right of way line, a distance of 150.56 feet to the Point of Beginning of 
the tract of land to be herein described; thence continuing North 88 degrees 00 minutes 
17 seconds West along said north right of way line, a distance of 478.71 feet to the east 
line of lot 3 of Clemens Addition, a subdivision in said County and state; thence North 
01 degrees 52 minutes 21 seconds East along said east line of lot 3 and the East line of 
lot 4 of said subdivision, a distance of 455.00 feet; thence South 88 degrees 00 minutes 
17 seconds East, a distance of 478.71 feet; thence South 01 degrees 52 minutes 21 
seconds West, a distance of 455.00 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

Section 2. The Legislature, pursuant to the application of Christine L. Smith (RZ-2022-

637), requesting the amendment embodied in this Ordinance and with notice that the 

Jackson County Plan Commission voted 9 to 0 to recommend APPROVAL of this 

application after a public hearing on July 21, 2022, does hereby adopt this Ordinance 
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pursuant to the Jackson County Charter authorizing the Legislature to exercise legislative 

power pertaining to planning and zoning. 





Request for Legislative Action 

August 4, 2022 eRLA #602 Page 1 of 3 

Completed by County Counselor’s Office 

Action Requested: Ordinance Res.Ord No.: 5645 

Sponsor(s):  Legislature Meeting Date: 8/15/2022 

Introduction 

Action Items: ['Authorize'] 

Project/Title: 

Christine L Smith – RZ-2022- 637 

Request Summary 

Requesting a change of zoning from District AG (Agricultural) on 5.00 ± acres to District RR (Residential 
Ranchette). The purpose is to create a single-family residential lot at 38410 E. Cline Road. 

Staff recommends approval because the change in zoning is consistent with the intent and purpose of 
the County Plan and complies with the Unified Development Code requirements.   
The Jackson County Plan Commission held a public hearing on July 21, 2022, and accepted testimony 
pertaining to the rezoning request. 
The Plan Commission voted 9 to 0 to recommend APPROVAL to the County Legislature. 

Contact Information 

Department: Public Works Submitted Date: 7/29/2022 

Name: Randy D. Diehl Email: RDiehl@jacksongov.org 

Title: Development Division 
Administator 

Phone: 816-881-4577

Budget Information 

Amount authorized by this legislation this fiscal year: $   0 

Amount previously authorized this fiscal year: $   0 

Total amount authorized after this legislative action: $  

Is it transferring fund? No 

Single Source Funding: 

Fund: Department: Line Item Account: Amount: 

!Unexpected End of
Formula 

Ordinance No.:  5645
Date:  August 9, 2022



Request for Legislative Action 

August 4, 2022 eRLA #602 Page 2 of 3 
 

Prior Legislation 

Prior Ordinances 

Ordinance: Ordinance date: 

  

Prior Resolution 

Resolution: Resolution date: 

  

 

Purchasing 

Does this RLA include the purchase or lease of 
supplies, materials, equipment or services? 

No 

Chapter 10 Justification:  

Core 4 Tax Clearance Completed:  

Certificate of Foreign Corporation Received:  

Have all required attachments been included in 
this RLA? 

 

 

Compliance 

Certificate of Compliance 

Not Applicable 

Minority, Women and Veteran Owned Business Program 

Goals Not Applicable for following reason: Not spending money 

MBE:    .00%  

WBE:    .00%  

VBE:     .00%  

Prevailing Wage 

Not Applicable  

 

Fiscal Information 

 This legislative action does not impact the County financially and does not require 
Finance/Budget approval. 
 

 



Request for Legislative Action 

August 4, 2022 eRLA #602 Page 3 of 3 
 

History 

Submitted by Public Works requestor: Randy D. Diehl on 7/29/2022. Comments: Land Use scheduled for 
August 22. 
 
Approved by Department Approver Brian Gaddie on 8/1/2022 4:11:59 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Not applicable by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 8/1/2022 4:43:42 PM. 
Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Compliance Office Approver Katie M. Bartle on 8/2/2022 4:12:29 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Not applicable by Budget Office Approver Mark Lang on 8/3/2022 9:16:39 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Executive Office Approver Sylvya Stevenson on 8/3/2022 11:21:02 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Counselor's Office Approver Elizabeth Freeland on 8/4/2022 3:20:41 PM. Comments: 
 

 



RZ-2022-637 
 
ATTACHMENT 1: PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
 
Description:  
 
A tract of land in the Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 32, Township 48 
North, Range 29 West in Jackson County, Missouri, described as follows:  Commencing 
at the Southeast corner of said 1/4 1/4 section; thence North 88 degrees 00 minutes 17 
seconds West along the South line of said 1/4 1/4 section, a distance of 689.50 feet; 
thence North 1°-51’-19” East, a distance of 25.00 feet to the north right of way line of 
Cline Road, as now established; thence North 88 degrees 00 minutes 17 seconds West 
along said north right of way line, a distance of 150.56 feet to the Point of Beginning of 
the tract of land to be herein described; thence continuing North 88 degrees 00 minutes 
17 seconds West along said north right of way line, a distance of 478.71 feet to the east 
line of lot 3 of Clemens Addition, a subdivision in said County and state; thence North 01 
degrees 52 minutes 21 seconds East along said east line of lot 3 and the East line of lot 
4 of said subdivision, a distance of 455.00 feet; thence South 88 degrees 00 minutes 17 
seconds East, a distance of 478.71 feet; thence South 01 degrees 52 minutes 21 
seconds West, a distance of 455.00 feet to the Point of Beginning. 
 



RZ-2022-637 
 
ATTACHMENT 2: ZONING SUPPORT DOCUMENTATION 
 
Attachments 
 
Plan Commission Public Hearing Summary from July 21, 2022 
Staff Report 
Zoning map of surrounding area 
Names/Addresses of Surrounding Property Owners 
Copy of letter to said property owners 
Application 
Aerial of location 
Preliminary Plat 
  
 

 



 
 
Randy Diehl gave the staff report: 
 
RE:  RZ-2022-637 
 
Applicant:   Christine L Smith 

 
Location: 38410 E Cline Road 
  
Area: 5.00 ± acres   
 
Request: Change of zoning from District AG (Agricultural) to District RR 
 (Residential Ranchette)  
   
Purpose:      Applicant is requesting the change in zoning to create a single-family 

residential lot.    
 

Current Land Use and Zoning in the Area: 
 
The zoning in the area is predominately Agricultural. Development around 
the subject property was developed prior to the adoption of the Unified 
Development Code in 1995.  
 
Land use is single family residences.  
 
The applicant is wishing to separate the existing residence within the 
5.00-acre lot. The remaining acreage will become a separate tract that 
would allow construction of a dwelling.  
 
The subdivision plat “McLennan’s Addition” is under review.   
 
County Plan:  

 
The County Plan Development Diagram illustrates this area within the 
Rural Development Tier (RDT).   
 

Recommendation: 
 

This request for rezoning is consistent with the intent and purpose of the 
County Plan.   

 
 Staff recommends APPROVAL of RZ-2022-637. 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
            
      Jackson County Public Works  

Development Division 
Randy Diehl, Administrator 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Mr. Antey: Are there any questions for Randy? 
 

Mr. Tarpley: The surrounding properties are all divided into lots? 
 
Mr. Diehl: Yes.  
 
Mr. Hilliard: What is the difference between lots and tracts? 
 
Mr. Diehl: Subdivision lots will usually have the lots numbered and tracts over 10 acres 
are referenced as letter designations.  
 
Mr. Antey: Is the applicant here? 
 
Christine Smith, 38410 E. Cline Road.  
 
Mr. Antey: Do you have anything to add to the report? 
 
Ms. Smith: No.   
 
Mr. Johnson: Do you own the rest of the property?  
 
Ms. Smith: Yes, I do. We are splitting this for my kids.  
 
Mr. Antey: Is there anyone else who is in favor of this application? 
 
There were none. 
 

Mr. Antey: Is there anyone who is opposed or has questions regarding this  
application? 
 
There were none 
 

Motion to take under advisement. 
 

Mr. Lake moved to take under advisement. Mr. Hilliard seconded. 
 
Discussion under advisement 
 
Mr. Tarpley moved to approve. Mr. Hilliard seconded. 
 

Mr. Akins  Approve 
Mr. Tarpley  Approve 
Mr. Johnson  Approve 
Mr. Crawford  Approve 
Mr. Hilliard  Approve 
Ms. Ryerkerk  Approve 
Mr. Farrar  Approve 
Mr. Lake  Approve 
Chairman Antey Approve                  
 
Motion Carried   9 – 0  
 

























IN THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 
AN ORDINANCE granting a conditional use permit in the AG (Agricultural) district for a 
period of five years to operate a wedding and event facility, subject to specified conditions, 
as to a 20.00± acre tract. 
 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 5646, August 15, 2022 
 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the County Legislature of Jackson County, Missouri as follows: 

 

Section 1. A conditional use permit (CUP) is hereby granted for a period of five years to 

operate a wedding and event facility, as to an approximate 20.00± acre tract of land in 

the AG (Agricultural District), commonly known as 9401 S. Hardsaw Road, Jackson 

County, MO, legally described as follows: 

 
The South 20 acres of the following described tract, to wit: 
 
The South 53 acres of the West 70.80 acres of the East half of the Northwest Quarter of 
Section 25, Township 48, Range 30, Except a roadway of the east side, being more 
particularly described as follows, to wit: Beginning 2.32 chains west of the center of 
Section 25, Township 48, Range 30, and running thence West 17.67 chains; thence 
North 30 chains; thence East 17.67 chains; thence South 30 chains to the Place of 
Beginning, all in Jackson County, Missouri, except part in roads, if any. 
 
 
Section 2. The CUP granted by this Ordinance is subject to the following conditions: 

1) Hours of operation will be 10:00 am to 11:00 pm.  

2) The number of guests is limited to 350 or number based on occupancy as 

determined by the building official. 

3) Activities are restricted to the barn. Ceremonies may be conducted outdoors.  

4) No overnight stay for travel trailers or recreational vehicles will be allowed. 

 
 

Section 3. The Legislature, pursuant to the application of Joshua & Adriana Predmore 
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(CU-2022-239), requesting the approval embodied in this Ordinance and with notice that 

the Jackson County Plan Commission voted 7 to 2 to recommend DISAPPROVAL of this 

application in a public hearing on July 21, 2022, does adopt this Ordinance pursuant to 

the Jackson County Charter authorizing the Legislature to exercise legislative power 

pertaining to planning and zoning. 





Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2022 eRLA #607 Page 1 of 3 

Completed by County Counselor’s Office 

Action Requested: Ordinance Res.Ord No.: 5646 

Sponsor(s):  Legislature Meeting Date: 8/15/2022 

Introduction 

Action Items: ['Authorize'] 

Project/Title: 

Joshua & Adriana Predmore - CU-2022-239 

Request Summary 

Requesting a Conditional Use Permit for a period of 5 years for an event facility on 20.00 ± acres within 
District AG (Agricultural) at 9401 S. Hardsaw Road. 

Staff recommends approval with condistions because the change in zoning is consistent with the intent 
and purpose of the County Plan and complies with the Unified Development Code requirements.   
The Jackson County Plan Commission held a public hearing on July 21, 2022, and accepted testimony 
pertaining to the rezoning request. 
The Plan Commission voted 2 to 7 to recommend DISAPPROVAL to the County Legislature. 

Contact Information 

Department: Public Works Submitted Date: 8/2/2022 

Name: Randy D. Diehl Email: RDiehl@jacksongov.org 

Title: Development Division 
Administrator 

Phone: 816-881-4457

Budget Information 

Amount authorized by this legislation this fiscal year: $   0 

Amount previously authorized this fiscal year: $   0 

Total amount authorized after this legislative action: $  

Is it transferring fund? No 

Single Source Funding: 

Fund: Department: Line Item Account: Amount: 

!Unexpected End of
Formula 

Ordinance No.:  5646
Date:  August 15, 2022



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2022 eRLA #607 Page 2 of 3 
 

Prior Legislation 

Prior Ordinances 

Ordinance: Ordinance date: 

  

Prior Resolution 

Resolution: Resolution date: 

  

 

Purchasing 

Does this RLA include the purchase or lease of 
supplies, materials, equipment or services? 

No 

Chapter 10 Justification:  

Core 4 Tax Clearance Completed:  

Certificate of Foreign Corporation Received:  

Have all required attachments been included in 
this RLA? 

 

 

Compliance 

Certificate of Compliance 

Not Applicable 

Minority, Women and Veteran Owned Business Program 

Goals Not Applicable for following reason: Not spending money 

MBE:    .00%  

WBE:    .00%  

VBE:     .00%  

Prevailing Wage 

Not Applicable  

 

Fiscal Information 

 This legislative action does not impact the County financially and does not require 
Finance/Budget approval. 
 

 



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2022 eRLA #607 Page 3 of 3 
 

History 

Submitted by Public Works requestor: Randy D. Diehl on 8/2/2022. Comments: Land Use Scheuelded for 
August 22. 
 
Approved by Department Approver Brian Gaddie on 8/4/2022 1:05:21 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Not applicable by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 8/4/2022 2:12:18 PM. 
Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Compliance Office Approver Katie M. Bartle on 8/5/2022 12:37:13 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Not applicable by Budget Office Approver Mark Lang on 8/5/2022 4:26:36 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Executive Office Approver Sylvya Stevenson on 8/8/2022 9:31:49 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Counselor's Office Approver Elizabeth Freeland on 8/10/2022 1:47:06 PM. Comments: 
 

 



CU-2022-239 
 
ATTACHMENT 1: PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
 
Description:  
 
The South 20 acres of the following described tract, to wit: 
 
The South 53 acres of the West 70.80 acres of the East half of the Northwest Quarter of  
Section 25, Township 48, Range 30, Except a roadway of the east side, being more 
particularly described as follows, to wit: Beginning 2.32 chains west of the center of 
Section 25, Township 48, Range 30, and running thence West 17.67 chains; thence 
North 30 chains; thence East 17.67 chains; thence South 30 chains to the Place of 
Beginning, all in Jackson County, Missouri, except part in roads, if any.  



CU-2022-239 
 
ATTACHMENT 2: ZONING SUPPORT DOCUMENTATION 
 
Attachments 
 
Plan Commission Public Hearing Summary from July 21, 2022 
Staff Report 
Zoning map of surrounding area 
Names/Addresses of Surrounding Property Owners 
Copy of letter to said property owners 
Application 
Site Plan 
Aerial of Property 
Proposed Plan for Events 
Letter from Richard Vincent 
Letter from Gary Jones II 
 
  
 

 



CU-2022-239 
 
ATTACHMENT 3: LIST OF CONDITIONS 
 
Condition Use Permit for a period of 5 (five) years with the following Conditions: 
 
 
 
1. Hours of operation will be 10:00 am to 11:00 pm.  
 
2. The number of guests is limited to 350 or number based on occupancy as 

determined by the building official.   
 
3. Activities are restricted to the building. Ceremonies may be conducted outdoors.  
 
4.  No overnight stay for travel trailers or recreational vehicles will be allowed.  
 
 

  
 



 
 
Randy Diehl gave the staff report: 
 
RE:  CU-2022-239 
 
Applicant:   Joshua & Adriana Predmore 

 
Location: 9401 S. Hardsaw Road 
 
Area: 20.00 ± acres 
  
Request: Conditional Use Permit for Event Venue 
   
Current Land Use and Zoning in the Area: 
 
The applicant is wishing to construct an event venue for weddings over weekends.  
One proposed plan would be to host wedding celebrations including rehearsals and 
cleanup that would run from Friday morning to Sunday morning.  
 
They would cap events at 50 per year.  
 
A second plan would be to host weddings on Saturdays as well as host weddings and 
corporate events throughout the week. 
 
There would be a cap of 80 events per year.  
 
 
Staff feels these types of uses (events center) should meet certain criteria: 
 
Area for the facility should be a tract of land at least 10 acres in size.  
The applicant has 20 acres.  
 
The facility must be on a road classified no less than a Collector as to functionality. 
Hardsaw Road is classified as a Collector.  
 
Hard surface parking shall be provided for normal everyday business activity including 
the appropriate number of required ADA parking spaces.  
 
No outside activities permitted other than wedding ceremonies. 
 
Doors to remain closed during events.  
 
No overnight stay for travel trailers or recreational vehicles.   
 
 
A food handlers permit is not required as each client is responsible for their own catering 
needs.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Recommendation: 
 
 
 Staff recommends APPROVAL of CU-2022-239 for a period of 5 (five) 
years, provided the following conditions are met:  
 
 
1. Hours of operation will be 10:00 am to 11:00 pm.  
 
2. The number of guests is limited to 350 or number based on occupancy as 

determined by the building official.   
 
3. Activities are restricted to the building. Ceremonies may be conducted outdoors.  
 
4.  No overnight stay for travel trailers or recreational vehicles will be allowed.  

 
 
 
 
       
We basically mirrored the same conditions of the event center that was approved April 
11, 2022.  
 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
            
      Jackson County Public Works  

Development Division 
Randy Diehl, Administrator 

 

 

 

Mr. Antey: Are there any questions for Randy? 
 
Mr. Crawford: The hard surface for everyday business activity. Explain. 
 
Mr. Diehl: It’s not for the entire parking area. Ag zoning is exempt from certain paving 
requirements. They can use gravel or similar material. Around the building for staff and 
to meet ADA requirements. The appropriate number of spaces would be determined at 
construction plan review. The size of the building and occupancy will determine the 
number.  
 
Mr. Antey: Is the applicant here? 
 
Josh Predmore, 9401 S. Hardsaw Road, Lone Jack 
 
Mr. Antey: Do you have anything to add to the report? 
 
Mr. Predmore: The current plan is 20 acres. We would install a separate driveway from 
the house to access the building. We would like to do Friday through Sunday. Friday for 
rehearsals, Saturday for the wedding and Sunday for cleanup. Staff is me, my wife and 
maybe one other person.  



 
Ceremonies will be on the north side of the building. Stillhouse Farms is about 2 miles 
from here. Lone Summit Ranch in on 50 Highway just east of 7 Highway. 
We’re not wanting to interfere with their market. We are trying to keep it more boutique 
type venue.  
 
Mr. Tarpley: What will be the size of the new building? 
 
Mr. Predmore: Around 5,000 square feet for about 200 to 250 people.  
 
Mr. Lake: Would you have other events other than weddings? 
 
Mr. Predmore: We are not exclusive to weddings.  
 
Mr. Akins: On the drawing there’s labeled “property line”. 
 
Mr. Diehl: The applicant was originally going to place the facility on 10 acres, but 
decided to go with the full 20 acres. That shows the division between the two 10 acres 
pieces.  
 
Mr. Hilliard: With the gravel parking will there a problem with dust? 
 
Mr. Predmore: We don’t foresee the being a problem. Traffic will be pretty slow.  
 
Mr. Hilliard: How will alcohol be handled? 
 
Mr. Predmore: We haven’t applied for a liquor license yet. We would have our own 
bartender.  
 
Mr. Johnson: Looks like you could make your own. 
 
Mr. Predmore: In the future we may have a vineyard to help offset costs. 
 
Mr. Hilliard: So, what if they want to bring their own alcohol? 
 
Mr. Predmore: That would be okay, but it would still fall under our guidelines.  
 
Mr. Crawford: The Conditional Use Permit runs with the land, correct? 
 
Mr. Diehl: Yes. If the property sells, it transfers to the new owner.  
 
Mr. Antey: Is there anyone else who is in favor of this application? 
 
There were none. 
 

Mr. Antey: Is there anyone who is opposed or has questions regarding this  
application? 
 
Richard Vincent, 9507 S. Hardsaw Road, Lone Jack.  
 
(Mr. Vincent’s Testimony is attached is attached) 
 

 

 



Mr. Antey: Can you show us on the map where you live.  
 
Mr. Vincent: Here to the south. My master bedroom is on the north side of the 
house.  
 
Mr. Tarpley: How far is the other place (Stillhouse Farms) from you? 
 
Mr. Diehl: As a crow flies, about a mile and a half. Driving it’s about 2 a half 
miles. 
 
Mr. Lake: How long have you lived out there? 
 
Mr. Vincent: My grandparents built the home in the early 1970’s. I purchased 
from them in 2016. 
 
Gary Jones, 34308 E. Colbern Road.  
 
(Mr. Jones’s Testimony is attached is attached) 

 
Mr. Lake: How long have you lived out there? 
 
Mr. Jones: A little over 5 years. 
 
Mr. Lake: I live out there. Hardsaw Road is narrow.  
 
Mr. Predmore recalled. 
 
Mr. Lake: I get what these people are saying.  
 
 
Motion to take under advisement. 
 
Mr. Lake moved to take under advisement. Mr. Farrar seconded. 
 
Discussion under advisement 
 
Mr. Akins moved to approve. Mr. Crawford seconded. 
 
Mr. Akins  Disapprove 
Mr. Tarpley  Approve 
Mr. Johnson  Disapprove 
Mr. Crawford  Disapprove 
Mr. Hilliard  Disapprove 
Ms. Ryerkerk  Disapprove 
Mr. Farrar  Disapprove 
Mr. Lake  Disapprove 
Chairman Antey Approve                 
 
Disapproved - Motion Carried   2 – 7  
 







































IN THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 
AN ORDINANCE granting a conditional use permit in the HI (Heavy Industrial) district 
for a period of fifteen years to perform earthwork and mining reclamation, subject to 
specified conditions, as to an 89.44± acre tract. 
 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 5647, August 15, 2022 
 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the County Legislature of Jackson County, Missouri as follows: 

 

Section 1. A conditional use permit (CUP) is hereby granted for a period of fifteen years 

to perform earthwork and mining reclamation, as to an approximate 89.44+ acre tract of 

land commonly known as 8400 E. Truman Road in Jackson County, Missouri, legally 

described as follows: 

 

Description: That part of the Northeast Quarter of Section 06, Township 49, Range 32, 
Jackson County, Missouri, described as follows: Beginning 246.97 feet West of the 
Southeast Corner of said Northeast Quarter, said point being on the Westerly right of 
way of Blue Ridge Boulevard; thence North 03 Degrees 7 Minutes 16 Seconds West, 
along said Westerly right of way line, 82.71 feet, to the true Point of Beginning; Thence 
continuing along westerly right of way line, North 03 Degrees 7 Minutes 16 Seconds 
West, 89.17 feet, thence Northeasterly along said right of way and along a curve to the 
right, 355.33 feet; thence North 23 degrees 46 Minutes 51 Seconds along said right of 
way, 552 feet, more or less, to the Kansas City corporate limit line; thence West 2450 
feet, more or less, to the Easterly line of I-435; thence Southwesterly along said right of 
way, 130 feet, more or less, thence South 582 feet, more or less; thence South 88 
Degrees 16 Minutes 49 Seconds East, 222.33 feet; thence South 01 Degrees 43 
minutes 11 Seconds West, 329.57 feet; thence South 72 degrees 43 Minutes 55 
Seconds West, 160 feet; thence West 71.03 feet; thence South 01 degree 43 Minutes 
11 Seconds West, 329.57 feet; thence South 72 degrees 43 Minutes 55 Seconds West 
160 feet; Thence West 160 feet; thence West 71.03 feet; thence South 78.28 feet to the 
South line of said Northeast Quarter; thence East along said South line, 1135 feet, more 
or less; thence North 82.37 feet; thence East 1085.38 feet to the true Point of 
Beginning. 
 
And including the following: 
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That part of the Northeast Quarter of Section 06, Township 49, Range 32, Jackson 
County, Missouri, described as follows: Beginning at a point on the South line of the 
Northeast Quarter, 1870 feet East of the Southwest Corner of said Northeast Quarter; 
thence North 01 Degrees 37 Minutes 10 Seconds East, 78.28 feet to the true Point of 
Beginning; Thence South 88 Degrees 16 Minutes 49 Seconds East, 71.03 feet; thence 
North 72 Degrees 43 Minutes 55 Seconds East, 160 feet; thence North 01 Degrees 37 
Minutes 10 Seconds, 329.57 feet; thence North 88 Degrees 16 Minutes 49 Seconds 
West, 222.33 feet to the Kansas City corporate limit line; thence South along said 
corporate lines line, 381.63 feet to the true Point of Beginning. 
 
And including the following: 
 
That Part of the West Half or the Southeast Quarter of Section 06, Township 49, Range 
32, Jackson County, Missouri, described as follows: Beginning at the Northeast corner 
of said West Half or Southeast Quarter, thence South along the East line of said West 
half, 872.45, thence South 86 degrees 04 minutes 54 seconds West, 316.90 feet; 
thence North 01 degrees 42 minutes 53 seconds East, 547.89 feet; thence South 61 
degrees 06 minutes 07 seconds West, 665.43 feet; thence South 72 degrees 34 
minutes 49 seconds West, 110.88 feet; thence South 39 degrees 05 minutes 32 
seconds West, 93.81 feet; thence South 05 degrees 45 minutes 45 seconds East, 
108.60 feet; thence South 34 degrees 46 minutes 44 seconds East, 198.51 feet; thence 
South 45 degrees 38 minutes 43 seconds East, 157.64 feet; thence South 70 degrees 
11 minutes 08 seconds East, 73.36 feet; thence North 80 degrees 40 minutes 30 
seconds East, 131.45 feet; thence North 08 degrees 48 minutes 41 seconds West, 
61.67 feet; thence north 74 degrees 34 minutes 43 seconds East, 139.67 feet; thence 
North 70 degrees 29 minutes 18 seconds East, 202.61 feet; thence North 87 degrees 
00 minutes 31 seconds East 278.94 feet; thence along a curve to the left, 273 feet more 
or less; thence South 56 degrees 02 minutes 47 seconds West, along the northerly right 
of way line, 189.54 feet; thence westerly along a curve to the right and along northerly 
right of way line, 422.83 to East right of way line of I-435; thence North along East right 
of way 119.18 feet; thence North 35 degrees 16 minutes 35 seconds West, along said 
Easterly Line, 210.20 feet; thence North 40 degrees 54 minutes 27 seconds East, along 
said East right of way line, 131.02 feet; thence North 36 degrees 21 minutes 30 
seconds West, along said right of way, 19 feet to Kansas City Corporate limit line; 
thence North along said corporate limit line to North line said Southeast Quarter line; 
thence East along said North said Southeast Quarter, 1135 feet to Point of Beginning. 
 
And including the following: 
 
Lot 1, Newco, a subdivision in Jackson County, Missouri. 
 
Being all that part of Section 06, Township 49, Range 31, Jackson County, Missouri, as 
described in Document 2021E0069682, except any part within Kansas City or 
Independence corporate boundaries.  
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Section 2. The CUP granted by this Ordinance is subject to the following conditions: 

 
1) Blasting operations shall be governed by the  Missouri Blasting Safety Act, 

Sections 319.300 -.345, RSMo.; 

2) Blasting shall be restricted to the hours between 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m.; 

3) Fixed equipment and machinery shall be located at least one hundred (100) feet 

from any lot line and five hundred feet from any residential zoning district. 

 
Section 3. The Legislature, pursuant to the application of Kevin Ash (CU-2022-238), 

requesting the approval embodied in this Ordinance and with notice that the Jackson 

County Plan Commission voted 9 to 0 to recommend APPROVAL of this application in a 

public hearing on July 21, 2022, does adopt this Ordinance pursuant to the Jackson 

County Charter authorizing the Legislature to exercise legislative power pertaining to 

planning and zoning. 





Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2022 eRLA #606 Page 1 of 3 

Completed by County Counselor’s Office 

Action Requested: Ordinance Res.Ord No.: 5647 

Sponsor(s):  Legislature Meeting Date: 8/15/2022 

Introduction 

Action Items: ['Authorize'] 

Project/Title: 

Kevin Ash - CU-2022-238 

Request Summary 

Requesting a Conditional Use Permit for a period of 15 years in District HI (Heavy Industrial) for 
earthwork and mining reclamation on 89.44 ± acres at 8400 E. Truman Road. 

Staff recommends approval because the change in zoning is consistent with the intent and purpose of 
the County Plan and complies with the Unified Development Code requirements.   
The Jackson County Plan Commission held a public hearing on July 21, 2022, and accepted testimony 
pertaining to the rezoning request. 
The Plan Commission voted 9 to 0 to recommend APPROVAL to the County Legislature. 

Contact Information 

Department: Public Works Submitted Date: 8/2/2022 

Name: Randy D. Diehl Email: RDiehl@jacksongov.org 

Title: Development Division 
Administrator 

Phone: 816-881-4577

Budget Information 

Amount authorized by this legislation this fiscal year: $   0 

Amount previously authorized this fiscal year: $   0 

Total amount authorized after this legislative action: $  

Is it transferring fund? No 

Single Source Funding: 

Fund: Department: Line Item Account: Amount: 

!Unexpected End of
Formula 

Ord. #5647
Date: August 15, 2022



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2022 eRLA #606 Page 2 of 3 
 

Prior Legislation 

Prior Ordinances 

Ordinance: Ordinance date: 

  

Prior Resolution 

Resolution: Resolution date: 

  

 

Purchasing 

Does this RLA include the purchase or lease of 
supplies, materials, equipment or services? 

No 

Chapter 10 Justification:  

Core 4 Tax Clearance Completed:  

Certificate of Foreign Corporation Received:  

Have all required attachments been included in 
this RLA? 

 

 

Compliance 

Certificate of Compliance 

Not Applicable 

Minority, Women and Veteran Owned Business Program 

Goals Not Applicable for following reason: Not spending money 

MBE:    .00%  

WBE:    .00%  

VBE:     .00%  

Prevailing Wage 

Not Applicable  

 

Fiscal Information 

 This legislative action does not impact the County financially and does not require 
Finance/Budget approval. 
 

 



Request for Legislative Action 

August 10, 2022 eRLA #606 Page 3 of 3 
 

History 

Submitted by Public Works requestor: Randy D. Diehl on 8/2/2022. Comments: Land Use Scheduled for 
August 22. 
 
Approved by Department Approver Brian Gaddie on 8/3/2022 4:18:00 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Not applicable by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 8/3/2022 4:26:37 PM. 
Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Compliance Office Approver Katie M. Bartle on 8/3/2022 4:46:12 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Not applicable by Budget Office Approver Mark Lang on 8/4/2022 2:00:55 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Executive Office Approver Sylvya Stevenson on 8/4/2022 4:33:50 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Counselor's Office Approver Elizabeth Freeland on 8/10/2022 1:45:59 PM. Comments: 
 

 



CU-2022-238 
 
ATTACHMENT 1: PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
 
Description:  
 
That part of the Northeast Quarter of Section 06, Township 49, Range 32, Jackson 
County, Missouri, described as follows: Beginning 246.97 feet West of the Southeast 
Corner of said Northeast Quarter, said point being on the Westerly right of way of Blue 
Ridge Boulevard; thence North 03 Degrees 7 Minutes 16 Seconds West, along said 
Westerly right of way line, 82.71 feet, to the true Point of Beginning; Thence continuing 
along westerly right of way line, North 03 Degrees 7 Minutes 16 Seconds West, 89.17 
feet, thence Northeasterly along said right of way and along a curve to the right, 355.33 
feet; thence North 23 degrees 46 Minutes 51 Seconds along said right of way, 552 feet, 
more or less, to the Kansas City corporate limit line; thence West 2450 feet, more or 
less, to the Easterly line of I-435; thence Southwesterly along said right of way, 130 feet, 
more or less, thence South 582 feet, more or less; thence South 88 Degrees 16 Minutes 
49 Seconds East, 222.33 feet; thence South 01 Degrees 43 minutes 11 Seconds West, 
329.57 feet; thence South 72 degrees 43 Minutes 55 Seconds West, 160 feet; thence 
West 71.03 feet; thence South 01 degree 43 Minutes 11 Seconds West, 329.57 feet; 
thence South 72 degrees 43 Minutes 55 Seconds West 160 feet; Thence West 160 feet; 
thence West 71.03 feet; thence South 78.28 feet to the South line of said Northeast 
Quarter; thence East along said South line, 1135 feet, more or less; thence North 82.37 
feet; thence East 1085.38 feet to the true Point of Beginning.  
 
And including the following: 
 
That part of the Northeast Quarter of Section 06, Township 49, Range 32, Jackson 
County, Missouri, described as follows: Beginning at a point on the South line of the 
Northeast Quarter, 1870 feet East of the Southwest Corner of said Northeast Quarter; 
thence North 01 Degrees 37 Minutes 10 Seconds East, 78.28 feet to the true Point of 
Beginning; Thence South 88 Degrees 16 Minutes 49 Seconds East, 71.03 feet; thence 
North 72 Degrees 43 Minutes 55 Seconds East, 160 feet; thence North 01 Degrees 37 
Minutes 10 Seconds, 329.57 feet; thence North 88 Degrees 16 Minutes 49 Seconds 
West, 222.33 feet to the Kansas City corporate limit line; thence South along said 
corporate lines line, 381.63 feet to the true Point of Beginning.  
 
And including the following: 
 
That Part of the West Half or the Southeast Quarter of Section 06, Township 49, Range 
32, Jackson County, Missouri, described as follows: Beginning at the Northeast corner of 
said West Half or Southeast Quarter, thence South along the East line of said West half, 
872.45, thence South 86 degrees 04 minutes 54 seconds West, 316.90 feet; thence 
North 01 degrees 42 minutes 53 seconds East, 547.89 feet; thence South 61 degrees 06 
minutes 07 seconds West, 665.43 feet; thence South 72 degrees 34 minutes 49 
seconds West, 110.88 feet; thence South 39* degrees 05 minutes 32 seconds West, 
93.81 feet; thence South 05 degrees 45 minutes 45 seconds East, 108.60 feet; thence 
South 34 degrees 46 minutes 44 seconds East, 198.51 feet; thence South 45 degrees 
38 minutes 43 seconds East, 157.64 feet; thence South 70 degrees 11 minutes 08 
seconds East, 73.36 feet; thence North 80 degrees 40 minutes 30 seconds East, 131.45 
feet; thence North 08 degrees 48 minutes 41 seconds West, 61.67 feet; thence north 74 



degrees 34 minutes 43 seconds East, 139.67 feet; thence North 70 degrees 29 minutes 
18 seconds East, 202.61 feet; thence North 87 degrees 00 minutes 31 seconds East 
278.94 feet; thence along a curve to the left, 273 feet more or less ; thence South 56 
degrees 02 minutes 47 seconds West, along the northerly right of way line, 189.54 feet; 
thence westerly along a curve to the right and along northerly right of way line, 422.83 to 
East right of way line of I-435; thence North along East right of way 119.18 feet; thence 
North 35 degrees 16 minutes 35 seconds West, along said Easterly Line, 210.20 feet; 
thence North 40 degrees 54 minutes 27 seconds East, along said East right of way line, 
131.02 feet; thence North 36 degrees 21 minutes 30 seconds West, along said right of 
way, 19 feet to Kansas City Corporate limit line; thence North along said corporate limit 
line to North line said Southeast Quarter line; thence East along said North said 
Southeast Quarter, 1135 feet to Point of Beginning.  
 
And including the following: 
 
Lot 1, Newco, a subdivision in Jackson County, Missouri.  
 
 
Being all that part of Section 06, Township 49, Range 31, Jackson County, Missouri, as 
described in Document 2021E0069682, except any part within Kansas City or 
Independence corporate boundaries.  



CU-2022-238 
 
ATTACHMENT 2: ZONING SUPPORT DOCUMENTATION 
 
Attachments 
 
Plan Commission Public Hearing Summary from July 21, 2022 
Staff Report 
Zoning map of surrounding area 
Names/Addresses of Surrounding Property Owners 
Copy of letter to said property owners 
Application 
Letter from Austin Powder 
Opinion from County Counselor’s Office 
Aerial of Property 
Mining Permit form State of Missouri 
Generalized Phasing Plan 
Illustrations showing concept plan and subsurface pillars 
 
  
 

 



CU-2022-238 
 
ATTACHMENT 3: LIST OF CONDITIONS 
 
Condition Use Permit for a period of 15 (fifteen) years with the following Conditions: 
 
 
 
1. Blasting operations shall be governed by the  

Missouri Safety Act, Sections 319.300 -.345, RSMo.  
 
2. Blasting shall be restricted to the hours between 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m.  
 
3.  Fixed equipment and machinery shall be located at least one hundred (100) feet 

from any lot line and five hundred feet from any residential zoning district.  
 
 

  
 



 
 
Randy Diehl gave the staff report: 
 
RE:  CU-2022-238 
 
Applicant:   Kevin Ash 

 
Location: 8400 E. Truman Road 
 
Area: 89.44 ± acres 
  
Request: Conditional Use Permit for earthwork and mining reclamation 
   
 
Comments: 
 
The applicant is wishing to develop the land. To prepare the land for development the 
existing undermined area will need to be collapsed and the material removed. The land 
is undevelopable due to the unsafe conditions within the mined-out areas.  
 
Plans are to remove the layer dirt, then remove the upper layer of rock to bring it down to 
the level of the highway. There are no plans for any additional subsurface mining. The 
rock will be crushed before moving it offsite.  
 
There will be some blasting required, at least once a day and every 2 to 3 days as 
required. The County’s blasting regulations are subject to the State of Missouri’s Blasting 
Safety Act. The State’s 2007 Safety Act as adopted states that no city or county may 
exceed or conflict with the provisions in the Act.    
 
The reclamation will take 15 years and will be conducted in three phases. Each phase 
will reclaim around 30 acres at a time and take approximately 5 years. The applicant has 
a permit issued from the Missouri Mining Commission for first 33 acres subject to 
444.760 RsMO, Land Reclamation Act.  
 
Dust will be handled by watering.  
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 
 Staff recommends APPROVAL of CU-2022-238 for a period of 15 (fifteen) 
years, provided the following conditions are met:  
 
 
1. Blasting operations shall be governed by the  

Missouri Safety Act, Sections 319.300 -.345, RSMo.  
 
2. Blasting shall be restricted to the hours between 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m.  
 
3.  Fixed equipment and machinery shall be located at least one hundred (100) feet 

from any lot line and five hundred feet from any residential zoning district.  
 

 



 
      Respectfully submitted, 
            
      Jackson County Public Works  

Development Division 
Randy Diehl, Administrator 

 

 

 

Mr. Antey: Are there any questions for Randy? 
 
Mr. Tarpley: Where is this exactly? 
 
Mr. Diehl: This is in Blue Summit, an unincorporated pocket between Kansas City and 
Independence.  
 
Mr. Tarpley: Do we know how long ago this was in operation? 
 
Mr. Diehl: We could not find anything relating to the former operation in our archived 
files. The subsurface was mined out and the applicant wants to develop this, however, 
do to the unsafe conditions of the surface, this is the only way to be able to develop the 
property.  
 
Mr. Tarpley: What was the mine used for? 
 
Mr. Crawford: More than likely for the limestone. My concern is the watering. Will the 
crusher be enclosed? 
 
Mr. Diehl: The applicant touched on that at the meeting regarding the rezoning.  
 
Mr. Lake: In the packet there is a diagram with an L-shaped illustration. What is that 
showing. 
 
Mr. Diehl: That shows the blasting limits as set forth in the County Code. The State 
regulations differ from the County’s. That was an illustration showing the setbacks and 
the area that could be reclaimed under the County Codes. It has been determined that 
the setbacks are determined by the State.  
 
Mr., Tarpley: how long has it been shut down? 
 
Mr. Diehl: In the 30 years I’ve been here, it has been closed.  
 
Mr. Hilliard: Can you show where this will be? 
 
Mr. Diehl: The picture with the blue rings basically is showing roughly what the 30 acres 
would be. This isn’t necessarily their actual plan, it’s just for illustration purposes.  
 
Mr. Lake: There is a lot of vegetation on the north side. Will the setbacks be 100 feet 
from there? 
 
Mr. Diehl: The shaded area on the map is the Coty of Kansas City. There is still a fair 
amount of buffer from the property line. I was wondering the vegetation should help with 
the dust.  
 



Mr. Crawford: Can they harvest the rock without a Use Permit? 
  
Mr. Diehl: They will need the Conditional Use Permit from the County. They already 
have the permit from the State. The Heavy Industrial Zoning is pending.  
 
Mr. Akins: What about damage to adjacent homes from the blasting?  
 
Mr. Diehl: I believe the applicant will address that. 
 
Mr. Antey: There will be monitoring There is a lot a blasting around Laker Lotawana with 
no concerns.  
 
Ms. Ryerkirk: What is the distance of the tree line on the north side? 
 
Mr. Diehl: It’s about 200 feet wide.  
 
Ms. Ryerkirk: what does exhibit 3 represent? 
 
Mr. Diehl: That is a layout of the pillars in the subsurface area.  
 
Mr. Hilliard: The Development to the north is in which city? 
 
Mr. Diehl: That is in Kansas City. 
 
Mr. Antey: Is the applicant here? 
 
Kevin Ash: 1101 Seymour Road, Grain Valley.  
 
David Halpin: 300 S Liberty, Independence, MO. I’m the attorney for Mr. Ash. 
 
Mr. Ash: Randy’s right. We would start here (indicating on map) which is Phase 1. We 
are bonded with the State for this phase, which we have a permit for. We would then 
carry on through Phases 2 and 3. The reason we are starting here is we need to gain 
access to the (Truman) Road. On the north side there is about 200 feet from the 
property line. There difference in elevation is about 100 feet. We’ll be a lot lower than the 
houses plus the trees will provide a buffer. We are going to remove the over burden first 
and then work to the reclamation.  
 
Mr. Johnson: Will you demo the building? 
 
Mr. Ash: No, it will stay for now.  
 
Mr. Hilliard: The traffic will exit Truman Road? 
 
Mr. Ash: Yes, there is an existing entrance.  
 
Mr. Crawford: I asked previously about the dust. You are going to water the haul road?  
 
Mr. Ash: We are monitored by Missouri Department of Natural Resources and a clean 
air permit.  
 
Mr. Antey: Are you regulated by MSHA (Mining Safety and Health Administration)? 
 
Mr. Ash: Yes.  



Mr. Crawford: Is that the dust control? 
 
Mr. Antey: Yes. They can be more be more stringent than OHSA. In the last 5 years they 
have implemented a lot of controls for dust and silica.  
 
Mr. Ash: We also crush concrete. We have a couple of different locations. Our Grain 
Valley location is right along I-70. We basically run a garden hose for the plant’s 
sprinklers. In downtown Kansas City we don’t have any issues with dust.    
 
Mr. Crawford: Where is that one at? 
 
Mr. Ash: Over by the downtown airport. We recycle concrete. We use the same type of 
crusher that we are proposing for this site.  
 
Mr. Tarpley: Will there ever be a concrete plant there?  
 
Mr. Ash: We have no plans for one. 
 
Mr. Hilliard: Will there be any noise from the blasting? 
 
Mr. Ash: Keep it mind that we are blasting pillars that are underground. It doesn’t take as 
much to remove a pillar. Noise is also covered under the State permit.  
 
Mr. Crawford: The Bethany Ledge. Is that being mined.  
 
Mr. Ash: The Winterset is there.  
 
Mr. Lake: On your phasing, is there going to be any intrusive activity at the cemetery? 
 
Mr. Ash: We plan on staying away from the cemetery.  
 
Ms. Ryerkirk: what sort of transition will there be between phases? 
 
Mr. Ash: The State requires a 3 to 1 slope.  
 
Mr. Farrar: I curious about insurance. In working for MoDOT on the Bruce Watkins 
project, when the dust cleared there were many lawsuits for ceiling cracks and the sort. 
  
Mr. Ash: We are insured. If there are any concerns, we can do pre-blast surveys on 
houses and foundations. We would document the pre blast conditions. We would use an 
outside company for that. We would also hire a seismograph company to monitor that 
outside of us. If there was an issue they would address accordingly.  
 
Mr. Lake: Are you part of Solar Business? 
 
Mr. Ash: No. That was the Dean family. Those illustrations were included to show what 
type of development we would like to do. This was the plan of a previous owner. We 
plan on doing something similar in nature.   
 
Mr. Lake: Are you going to be the developer of the business park? 
 
Mr. Ash: That is what we are hoping to be.  
 
Mr. Antey: Is there anyone else who is in favor of this application? 



Gregory Short: I am former President of Blue Valley Industrial Association, along the 
Blue River Corridor. I am the previous owner of this property. I decided that this type of 
project was too much for me at this point in my life. I ended picking Kevin for this 
property. He’s in concrete recycling. He’s a commercial crusher with several sites. He 
was the idea candidate for this. Kevin the guy this this job. I’m very much in support of 
this project.  
 

Mr. Antey: Is there anyone who is opposed or has questions regarding this  
application? 
 
Dan Wilkenson: 8806 E 9th Street. Is anybody going to do anything about the trees on 
the south side of 9th Street? 
 
Mr. Diehl: That would actually be something you would need to bring to the attention of 
the City of Kansas City, since that area is inside their jurisdiction.  
 
Mr. Wilkenson: Is that part of their (applicants) property?  
 
Mr. Diehl: Yes, but the County does not have jurisdiction inside city limits on a matter 
such as this.  
 
Julie Armato: 8806 E 9th Street. I was curious about the company that would come in 
and due the survey for blasting.  
 
Mr. Ash: You would need to contact that company and they would do the survey.  
 
Mr. Crawford: Would this a house to house survey? 
 
Mr. Ash: I not sure. It could be as needed or requested.  
 
Mr. Crawford: Would that be after the fact? 
 
Mr. Ash: I’m sure there would be some sort of a initial survey prior to any type of 
blasting. The guys from the blasting company are here to answer any questions. 
 
Representatives from Austin Powder. Sauls Seismic is the name of the company. Is this 
instance with us being on the other side of the property so far away from these homes, it 
would be better to have those assessments done once the phasing was in the area of 
the homes. The ways it’s done, is that there is a scale distance. As long as we stay 
under that scale distance there isn’t one that required under the statutes. It isn’t 
necessarily a door to door thing unless we can’t stay under that number.  
 
The national blasting regulations, which the State uses, which is a distance of 55. As 
long as that number is 55 or over, there shouldn’t be an issue. I we get to 55 we would 
notify everybody. The is how close we are working from the closest protected structure. 
We take that distance and divided by the pounds of powder for 8 milliseconds of 
detonation. That determines what we do and how we do it. We may need to change our 
mix. If we get down to a distance of 35, we would conduct a door to door survey. Where 
we are starting, we’ll greatly exceed that distance until Phase 3. 
 
Ms. Ryerkirk: Is there any additional vulnerability to the cemetery since it is already 
undermined?  
Representative form Austin Powder: I don’t see problem with that. We are staying out of 
that area like it is. We don’t want to take any unnecessary chances.  



 
Mr. Johnson: I know this is down the road, how are these residents going to know when 
you get to that point? 
 
Representative form Austin Powder: We have to notify them. We don’t jeopardize this 
project and get in trouble with the State.  
 
Mr. Tarpley: What is the size of the cemetery?  
 
Mr. Diehl: Approximately 24 acres.  
 
Mr. Lake: If we are just blasting pillars, that doesn’t take as much charge? 
 
Representative form Austin Powder: It depends on the pillar. We currently have different 
projects around town and sometimes gravity helps as well after detonation. We may use 
a little more on the Winterset. In Lee’s Summit we are shooting 9 to 10 pillars 300 feet 
from a house.  
 
 Mr. Crawford: What will be the process? 
 
Mr. Ash: The reason we are starting where we are is that there isn’t a lot a Winterset at 
that location. There’s not a lot of overburden there.  
 
Mr. Tarpley moved to take under advisement.   Mr. Lake seconded. 
 
Mr. Tarpley: I think it’s long overdue and would be an improvement to the area.  
 
Mr. Antey: I think they have a good overall plan. 
 
Mr. Crawford: I agree. They seem to have a handle on the dust and blasting.  
 
Mr. Farrar: It pleases me that there will be some improvement here.  
 
Mr. Hilliard: Randy, the State will be controlling this?  
 
Mr. Diehl: Yes, the County’s regulations cannot exceed the States. There was one point 
in the County Code that had to do with vibrations.  
 
Mr. Crawford: Who’s going to monitor the dust?  
 
Mr. Antey: That falls under State regulations and MSHA. 
 
Mr. Tarpley Moved to Approve Mr. Lake seconded 
 
Mr. Akins  Approve        Mr. Crawford  Approve 
Mr. Hilliard  Approve        Ms. Ryerkerk  Approve 
Mr. Farrar  Approve        Mr. Lake  Approve 
Mr. Tarpley  Approve        Mr. Johnson  Approve 
Chairman Antey Approve 
 
 
Motion Carried   9 – 0  
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IN THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 

AN ORDINANCE amending the zoning districts established pursuant to the 
Unified Development Code by rezoning a certain 60.00± acre tract from District B-r 
(Two-Family) to District HI (Heavy Industrial). 

ORDINANCE NO. 5648, August 15, 2022 

BE IT ORDAINED by the County Legislature of Jackson County, Missouri as follows: 

Section 1. The Zoning Order of Jackson County, Missouri, and the official maps which 

are a part thereof, are amended by changing the boundaries of the "B-r" (Two-Family) 

and “HI” (Heavy Industrial) Districts, so that there will be transferred from District B-r to 

District HI a tract of land, with a street address of 8400 E. Truman Road, in Jackson 

County legally described as follows: 

Description: That part of the Northeast Quarter of Section 06, Township 49, Range 32, 
Jackson County, Missouri, described as follows: Beginning 246.97 feet West of the 
Southeast Corner of said Northeast Quarter, said point being on the Westerly right of way 
of Blue Ridge Boulevard; thence North 03 Degrees 7 Minutes 16 Seconds West, along 
said Westerly right of way line, 82.71 feet, to the true Point of Beginning; Thence 
continuing along westerly right of way line, North 03 Degrees 7 Minutes 16 Seconds West, 
89.17 feet, thence Northeasterly along said right of way and along a curve to the right, 
355.33 feet; thence North 23 degrees 46 Minutes 51 Seconds along said right of way, 
552 feet, more or less, to the Kansas City corporate limit line; thence West 2450 feet, 
more or less, to the Easterly line of I-435; thence Southwesterly along said right of way, 
130 feet, more or less, thence South 582 feet, more or less; thence South 88 Degrees 16 
Minutes 49 Seconds East, 222.33 feet; thence South 01 Degrees 43 minutes 11 Seconds 
West, 329.57 feet; thence South 72 degrees 43 Minutes 55 Seconds West, 160 feet; 
thence West 71.03 feet; thence South 01 degree 43 Minutes 11 Seconds West, 329.57 
feet; thence South 72 degrees 43 Minutes 55 Seconds West 160 feet; Thence West 160 
feet; thence West 71.03 feet; thence South 78.28 feet to the South line of said Northeast 
Quarter; thence East along said South line, 1135 feet, more or less; thence North 82.37 
feet; thence East 1085.38 feet to the true Point of Beginning.  

And including the following: 



 

-2- 

That part of the Northeast Quarter of Section 06, Township 49, Range 32, Jackson 
County, Missouri, described as follows: Beginning at a point on the South line of the 
Northeast Quarter, 1870 feet East of the Southwest Corner of said Northeast Quarter; 
thence North 01 Degrees 37 Minutes 10 Seconds East, 78.28 feet to the true Point of 
Beginning; Thence South 88 Degrees 16 Minutes 49 Seconds East, 71.03 feet; thence 
North 72 Degrees 43 Minutes 55 Seconds East, 160 feet; thence North 01 Degrees 37 
Minutes 10 Seconds, 329.57 feet; thence North 88 Degrees 16 Minutes 49 Seconds 
West, 222.33 feet to the Kansas City corporate limit line; thence South along said 
corporate lines line, 381.63 feet to the true Point of Beginning. 
 

Section 2. The Legislature, pursuant to the application of Kevin Ash (RZ-2022-625), 

requesting the amendment embodied in this Ordinance and with notice that the Jackson 

County Plan Commission voted 7 to 0 to recommend APPROVAL of this application after 

a public hearing on May 19, 2022, does hereby adopt this Ordinance pursuant to the 

Jackson County Charter authorizing the Legislature to exercise legislative power 

pertaining to planning and zoning. 





Request for Legislative Action 

August 11, 2022 eRLA #549 Page 1 of 3 

Completed by County Counselor’s Office 

Action Requested: Ordinance Res.Ord No.: 5648 

Sponsor(s):  Legislature Meeting Date: 8/15/2022 

Introduction 

Action Items: ['Authorize'] 

Project/Title: 

Kevin Ash - RZ-2022-625 

Request Summary 

Requesting a change of zoning from District B-r (Two Family), on 60.00 ± acres to District HI (Heavy 
Industrial). The purpose is to for earthwork and mining reclamation at 8400 E. Truman Road. 

Staff recommends approval because the change in zoning is consistent with the intent and purpose of 
the County Plan and complies with the Unified Development Code requirements.   
The Jackson County Plan Commission held a public hearing on May 19, 2022, and accepted testimony 
pertaining to the rezoning request. 
The Plan Commission voted 7 to 0 to recommend APPROVAL to the County Legislature. 

Contact Information 

Department: Public Works Submitted Date: 6/2/2022 

Name: Randy D. Diehl Email: RDiehl@jacksongov.org 

Title: Development Administrator Phone: 816-881-4577

Budget Information 

Amount authorized by this legislation this fiscal year: $   0 

Amount previously authorized this fiscal year: $   0 

Total amount authorized after this legislative action: $  

Is it transferring fund? No 

Single Source Funding: 

Fund: Department: Line Item Account: Amount: 

!Unexpected End of
Formula 

Ord. 5648
Date: August 15, 2022



Request for Legislative Action 

August 11, 2022 eRLA #549 Page 2 of 3 

Prior Legislation 

Prior Ordinances 

Ordinance: Ordinance date: 

Prior Resolution 

Resolution: Resolution date: 

Purchasing 

Does this RLA include the purchase or lease of 
supplies, materials, equipment or services? 

No 

Chapter 10 Justification: 

Core 4 Tax Clearance Completed: 

Certificate of Foreign Corporation Received: 

Have all required attachments been included in 
this RLA? 

Compliance 

Certificate of Compliance 

Not Applicable 

Minority, Women and Veteran Owned Business Program 

Goals Not Applicable for following reason: Not spending money 

MBE:   .00% 

WBE:   .00% 

VBE:   .00% 

Prevailing Wage 

Not Applicable 

Fiscal Information 

 This legislative action does not impact the County financially and does not require
Finance/Budget approval.



Request for Legislative Action 

August 11, 2022 eRLA #549 Pa

Submitted by Public Works requestor: Randy D. Diehl on 6/2/2022. Comments: Land Use scheduled for 
June 27, 2022 

Approved by Department Approver Brian Gaddie on 6/2/2022 9:45:24 AM. Comments: 

Not applicable by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 6/2/2022 10:19:57 AM. 
Comments: 

Returned for more information by Compliance Office Approver Katie M. Bartle on 6/14/2022 9:43:36 
AM. Comments:  Returned per request from Counselor's Office & IT.  KMB 

Submitted by Requestor Randy D. Diehl on 8/4/2022 1:44:39 PM. Comments: 

Approved by Department Approver Brian Gaddie on 8/4/2022 2:48:30 PM. Comments: 

Not applicable by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 8/4/2022 3:22:18 PM. 
Comments: 

Approved by Compliance Office Approver Katie M. Bartle on 8/5/2022 12:33:24 PM. Comments: 

Not applicable by Budget Office Approver Mark Lang on 8/5/2022 4:29:30 PM. Comments: 

Approved by Executive Office Approver Sylvya Stevenson on 8/8/2022 9:36:37 AM. Comments: 

Returned for more information by Counselor's Office Approver Elizabeth Freeland on 8/9/2022 9:26:18 
AM. Comments:  Adjust district name per our email conversation. Thanks! 

Submitted by Requestor Randy D. Diehl on 8/9/2022 9:43:28 AM. Comments:  Corrected to B-r (Two 
Family) 

Approved by Department Approver Kristina J. Miller on 8/10/2022 11:03:39 AM. Comments:  . 

Not applicable by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 8/10/2022 11:49:07 AM. 
Comments: 

Approved by Compliance Office Approver Katie M. Bartle on 8/10/2022 1:54:16 PM. Comments: ge 3 of 3 

Not applicable by Budget Office Approver Mark Lang on 8/11/2022 10:06:18 AM. Comments: 



RZ-2022-625 
 
ATTACHMENT 1: PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 
 
Description:  
 
That part of the Northeast Quarter of Section 06, Township 49, Range 32, Jackson 
County, Missouri, described as follows: Beginning 246.97 feet West of the Southeast 
Corner of said Northeast Quarter, said point being on the Westerly right of way of Blue 
Ridge Boulevard; thence North 03 Degrees 7 Minutes 16 Seconds West, along said 
Westerly right of way line, 82.71 feet, to the true Point of Beginning; Thence continuing 
along westerly right of way line, North 03 Degrees 7 Minutes 16 Seconds West, 89.17 
feet, thence Northeasterly along said right of way and along a curve to the right, 355.33 
feet; thence North 23 degrees 46 Minutes 51 Seconds along said right of way, 552 feet, 
more or less, to the Kansas City corporate limit line; thence West 2450 feet, more or 
less, to the Easterly line of I-435; thence Southwesterly along said right of way, 130 feet, 
more or less, thence South 582 feet, more or less; thence South 88 Degrees 16 Minutes 
49 Seconds East, 222.33 feet; thence South 01 Degrees 43 minutes 11 Seconds West, 
329.57 feet; thence South 72 degrees 43 Minutes 55 Seconds West, 160 feet; thence 
West 71.03 feet; thence South 01 degree 43 Minutes 11 Seconds West, 329.57 feet; 
thence South 72 degrees 43 Minutes 55 Seconds West 160 feet; Thence West 160 feet; 
thence West 71.03 feet; thence South 78.28 feet to the South line of said Northeast 
Quarter; thence East along said South line, 1135 feet, more or less; thence North 82.37 
feet; thence East 1085.38 feet to the true Point of Beginning.  
 
And including the following: 
 
That part of the Northeast Quarter of Section 06, Township 49, Range 32, Jackson 
County, Missouri, described as follows: Beginning at a point on the South line of the 
Northeast Quarter, 1870 feet East of the Southwest Corner of said Northeast Quarter; 
thence North 01 Degrees 37 Minutes 10 Seconds East, 78.28 feet to the true Point of 
Beginning; Thence South 88 Degrees 16 Minutes 49 Seconds East, 71.03 feet; thence 
North 72 Degrees 43 Minutes 55 Seconds East, 160 feet; thence North 01 Degrees 37 
Minutes 10 Seconds, 329.57 feet; thence North 88 Degrees 16 Minutes 49 Seconds 
West, 222.33 feet to the Kansas City corporate limit line; thence South along said 
corporate lines line, 381.63 feet to the true Point of Beginning.  



RZ-2022-625 
 
ATTACHMENT 2: ZONING SUPPORT DOCUMENTATION 
 
Attachments 
 
Plan Commission Public Hearing Summary from May 19, 2022 
Staff Report 
Zoning map of surrounding area 
Names/Addresses of Surrounding Property Owners 
Copy of letter to said property owners 
Application 
Aerial of location 
 

 



 
 
Randy Diehl gave the staff report: 
 
RE:  RZ-2022-625 
 
Applicant:   Kevin Ash 

 
Location: 8400 E Truman Road 
  
Area: 60.00 ± acres   
 
Request: Change of zoning from District B-r (Two Family) to District HI 
 (Heavy Industrial)  
   
Purpose:      Earthwork and Mining Reclamation   

 
Current Land Use and Zoning in the Area: 

 
The applicant owns approximately 120 acres of which 30 acres are inside 
Kansas City. The 60 acres are currently which District B-r (Two-Family). 
 
In 1943 County Court adopted a Zoning Order for the unincorporated 
areas of the County. The area north of Truman Road was designated as 
District B.  
 
A change of zoning from District B to District HI was granted by the 
County Court in 1959 for 30.00 acres. (Amendment 62.3) for use as a 
rock quarry.  
 
In 1982 a change of zoning was granted on the 26 acres at Truman Road 
and Blue Ridge Boulevard from District B to District HI (Ordinance No. 
993). This change was made to allow subsurface development.  
 
The applicant is requesting the change in zoning to in order conduct 
earthwork and mining reclamation which requires a Conditional Use 
Permit (pending).  
 
Development of this area will require the removal of the material on the 
surface and the removal of the existing mined area.  
 
County Plan:  

 
The County Plan Development Diagram illustrates this area within the 
Urban Development Tier (UDT).   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Recommendation: 
 

This request for rezoning is consistent with the intent and purpose of the 
County Plan.   

 
 Staff recommends APPROVAL of RZ-2022-625. 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
            
      Jackson County Public Works  

Development Division 
Randy Diehl, Administrator 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mr. Tarpley: Are there any questions for Randy? 
 
Mr. Lake: What area is being rezoned? 
 
Mr. Diehl: The map which shows the cross-hatched area with the blue outline is the area 
requested to be rezoned.  
 
Mr. Lake: That’s not the cemetery? 
 
Mr. Diehl: No. The Lincoln Cemetery is the property to the Southeast of the applicant’s 
tract.  
 
Mr. Lake: I noticed there was something going on East of Blue Ridge. 
 
Mr. Diehl: That development is within the City of Independence.  
 
Mr. Lake: This is basically undeveloped property then. 
 
Mr. Diehl: Yes, the subsurface is undermined. The applicant can shed more light as to 
the extent of that.  
 
Mr. Hilliard: Is this where the landfill was? 
 
Mr. Diehl: No. The old landfill was South of Truman Road. 
 
 
Mr. Tarpley: Is the applicant here? 
 
Kevin Ash: 1101 S Seymour, Grain Valley 
 
 
 
 



Mr. Tarpley: Do you have anything to add to the report? 
 
Mr. Ash: Basically, we are doing this for the Heavy Industrial zoning. Getting it cleaned 
up for development.   
 
Mr. Tarpley: Is this an active quarry? 
 
Mr. Ash: No. it was undermined years ago. There are some places where the pillars 
have collapsed. It would tough to develop it that way. The cemetery is undermined. We 
have the mineral rights.  
 
Mr. Lake: Can you explain what you are wanting to do for development? 
 
Mr. Ash: Our plan is to start in this area. (indicting on map area just North of the existing 
building) and work our way around this way. We take a layer of dirt off, then the upper 
layer of rock. That would bring it down to the level of the highway.  
 
Mr. Lake: Years ago, there was a plan to fill this in. You are wanting to take it down.  
 
Mr. Ash: Yes. We’ll bring it down.  
 
Mr. Lake: Are we talking industrial development? 
 
Mr. Ash: Yes, that is the plan. 
 
Mr. Farrar: Is any of this under the highway.  
 
Mr. Ash: No. It stops at the highway and runs east to Blue Ridge.  
 
Mr. Farrar: Has any of that been used for storage? 
 
Mr. Ash: No, it has not been developed at all.  
 
Mr. Lake: Are residents in those woods? 
 
Mr. Ash: From time-to-time we’ve seen folks back there, but we haven’t found anyone 
living in there. We’ve had people break into the cave. We have the entrance pretty 
secured now. It would be hard to develop this without taking it down.  
 
Mr. Farrar: I think it’s a good idea. It’ll make it better. 
 
Mr. Crawford: Are you going to quarry the rock? 
 
Mr. Ash: Yes, we are. 
 
Mr. Crawford: It is Winterset and Bethany? 
 
Mr. Ash: Yes. It’s thin in some areas and there are some places it’s 20 feet thick.  
 
Mr. Lake: Are you going to have a crusher on site?3 
 
Mr. Ash: We plan on having a crusher.  
 
Mr. Farrar: Will there be any blasting? 



 
Mr. Ash: Yes, to take the rock out.  
 
Mr. Crawford: How long do you this project being? 
 
Mr. Ash: Around 15 years. In dealing with layers of rock, you can’t get in a hurry. You 
must take pieces out at a time. The Winterset wasn’t mined, just the Bethany.  
 
Mr. Tarpley: Is there anyone else who is in favor of this application? 
 
There were none. 
 

Mr. Tarpley: Is there anyone who is opposed or has questions regarding this  
application? 
 
Julie Armato: 8806 E. 9th Street. How does this affect my property? Blasting, trucks and 
redevelopment? 
 
Mr. Ash: The area to the south of 9th Street is inside Kansas City. We would not be 
working in that area.  
 
Ms. Amato: How far is that.  
 
Mr. Diehl: It’s about 200 feet from 9th Street.  
 
Mr. Lake: Will there be blasting to take the cave down? 
 
Mr. Ash: There will be some blasting to accomplish that. 
 
Mr. Lake: You blast at certain times?  
 
Mr. Ash: Once every day or every 2 to 3 days. We have to work around the weather.  
 
Mr. Crawford: How will extract the rock? 
 
Mr. Ash: We will drill, blast, and crush it. We will be in the middle of the property to help 
reduce noise.  
 
Mr. Lake: You’re not going to strip it all of trees right away?  
 
Mr. Ash: No. We will clean land as we go.  
 
Dave Halphin: 300 S Liberty, Independence, MO. Kevin, don’t you have a mining permit 
from the State? 
 
Mr. Ash: Yes, the State has issued us a permit for the first 35 acres. Then we would 
move to the next section.  
 
Mr. Tarpley: What is the total acreage?  
 
Mr. Ash: We have about 120 acres, however we are only working on about 90 acres.   
 
Ms. Amato: How long will be in the first section? 
 



Mr. Ash: Each section will take roughly 5 years. So about 15 years.  
 
Mr. Hilliard: How will you handle dust? 
 
Mr. Ash: We will use water.  
 
Ms. Amato: What about trucks in our neighborhood? 
 
Mr. Ash: We will not be using 9th Street. Our plan is to use the existing Truman Road 
entrance.  
 
Mr. Hilliard: We had a lot of problems with the Barber quarry. 
 
Mr. Ash. That operation is much bigger than we will be. He was doing 400 tons an hour. 
We will be probably half of that. We will do pre-blast surveys and how a monitoring 
company for the blasting. They are an outside source.  
 
Mr. Halphin: Most of that will be addressed in the Conditional Use Permit. 
 
Mr. Diehl: They have applied for the Conditional Use Permit. We are still waiting on 
some additional information. That will be heard at the July 21 meeting. The specifics for 
the reclamation will be addressed then, Today they are only seeking the rezoning of the 
property to get the Conditional Use Permit.  
 
Jennifer Sparks: 720 Lewis Avenue. I concerned about noise and dust. I want to 
understand why were doing this. It’s for future development?  
 
Mr. Halphin: Yes, it’s to develop the property. It’s undevelopable at this time until we get 
the mine taken care of. 
 
Mr. Ash: It’s unsafe to develop on top of it.  
 
Ms. Sparks: What will be build on it? Warehouses like we see going on.  
 
Mr. Ash: It’s possible. We don’t what will be going on in 15 years. Something along those 
lines, though. There’s room at the front, and then areas in the back.  
 
Ms. Sparks: How will you contain it? The trees are a nice buffer.  
 
Mr. Tarpley: Is there an amount of blasting per day?  
 
Mr. Ash: There are some stipulations we must adhere to under the State permit.  
 
Mr. Farrar: Randy, if I understand right, if we pass the rezoning, the property owners will 
still have another opportunity to make sure they are protected. This today is just for the 
rezoning.  
 
Mr. Diehl: That is correct. The Conditional Use Permit will be heard in July. The County 
permit will work with the State Permit. We cannot be more restrictive than the State’s 
permit. There were some issues with the County regulations being more restrictive and 
those items had to be dealt with prior to moving forward.  
 
Ms. Amato: How will we be notified of the next meeting? 
 



Mr. Diehl: The next meeting will be July 21st. Same time or place as this meeting.  
 
Mr. Ash: We sent letters out when we applied for the State permit. 
 
 
Motion to take under advisement. 
 
Mr. Hilliard moved to take under advisement. Mr. Lake seconded. 
 
Discussion under advisement 
 
Mr. Lake moved to approve. Mr. Farrar seconded. 
 
Mr. Johnson  Approve 
Mr. Crawford  Approve 
Mr. Hilliard  Approve 
Ms. Ryerkerk  Approve 
Mr. Farrar  Approve 
Mr. Lake  Approve 
Chairman Tarpley Approve 
 
 
Motion Carried   7 – 0  
 



 
 
 
STAFF REPORT  
 
PLAN COMMISSION 
May 19, 2022 
 
RE:  RZ-2022-625 
 
Applicant:   Kevin Ash 

 
Location: 8400 E Truman Road 
  
Area: 60.00 ± acres   
 
Request: Change of zoning from District B-r (Two Family) to District HI 
 (Heavy Industrial)  
   
Purpose:      Earthwork and Mining Reclamation   

 
Current Land Use and Zoning in the Area: 

 
The applicant owns approximately 120 acres of which 30 acres are inside 
Kansas City. The 60 acres are currently which District B-r (Two-Family). 
 
In 1943 County Court adopted a Zoning Order for the unincorporated 
areas of the County. The area north of Truman Road was designated as 
District B.  
 
A change of zoning from District B to District HI was granted by the 
County Court in 1959 for 30.00 acres. (Amendment 62.3) for use as a 
rock quarry.  
 
In 1982 a change of zoning was granted on the 26 acres at Truman Road 
and Blue Ridge Boulevard from District B to District HI (Ordinance No. 
993). This change was made to allow subsurface development.  
 
The applicant is requesting the change in zoning to in order conduct 
earthwork and mining reclamation which requires a Conditional Use 
Permit (pending).  
 
Development of this area will require the removal of the material on the 
surface and the removal of the existing mined area.  
 
County Plan:  

 
The County Plan Development Diagram illustrates this area within the 
Urban Development Tier (UDT).   
 

 
 
 



 2 

 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 

This request for rezoning is consistent with the intent and purpose of the 
County Plan.   

 
 Staff recommends APPROVAL of RZ-2022-625. 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
            
      Jackson County Public Works  

Development Division 
Randy Diehl, Administrator 



Jackson County Plan Commission
May 19, 2022

Agenda Location Map ¯

7. RZ-2022-625
8. CU-2022-238



Plan Commission May 19, 2022

RZ-2022-625  

Property Owners Within 185 feet

Parcel owner address city state zip

27-220-05-01-00-0-00-000 MOUNT WASHINGTON FOREVER LLC 614 BROOKSIDE AVE INDEPENDENC MO 64053

27-230-01-14-01-0-00-000 MOUNT WASHINGTON FOREVER LLC 614 BROOKSIDE AVE INDEPENDENC MO 64053

27-310-09-03-00-0-00-000 MOUNT WASHINGTON FOREVER LLC 614 BROOKSIDE AVE INDEPENDENC MO 64053

27-310-08-06-00-0-00-000 LINCOLN INVESTMENT CO 1734 WASHINGTON BLVD KANSAS CITY KS 66102

27-340-02-06-01-0-00-000 DOUGLAS INVESTMENT CO 2632 W PASEO BLVD KANSAS CITY MO 64108

27-340-03-16-00-0-00-000 8231 LLC 4225 W 107TH ST # 7354 OVERLAND PARK KS 66207

27-340-04-02-00-0-00-000 K & L PETROLEUM LLC 8301 E TRUMAN RD KANSAS CITY MO 64126

27-340-04-11-00-0-00-000 M & JK INVESTMENTS LLC 8301 E TRUMAN RD KANSAS CITY MO 64126

27-340-05-11-00-0-00-000 M & JK INVESTMENTS LLC 8301 E TRUMAN RD KANSAS CITY MO 64126

27-340-05-03-00-0-00-000 M & JK INVESTMENTS LLC 8301 E TRUMAN RD KANSAS CITY MO 64126

27-340-05-10-00-0-00-000 M & JK INVESTMENTS LLC 8301 E TRUMAN RD KANSAS CITY MO 64126

27-340-06-17-00-0-00-000 GLEASONS LIQUORS LLC 900 NE 2ND  BLUE SPRINGS MO 64104

27-340-06-04-00-0-00-000 CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 111 E MAPLE ST INDEPENDENCE MO 64050

27-340-06-03-00-0-00-000 BOONE RON 1511 MARSH AVE KANSAS CITY MO 64126

27-340-06-02-00-0-00-000 TR8615 LLC 1500 NE 50TH TER KANSAS CITY MO 64118

27-310-08-10-00-0-00-000 SBKA LLC 1101 S SEYMOUR RD GRAIN VALLEY MO 64029

27-340-02-17-00-0-00-000 SBKA LLC 1101 S SEYMOUR RD GRAIN VALLEY MO 64029

27-310-08-11-01-0-00-000 SBKA LLC 1101 S SEYMOUR RD GRAIN VALLEY MO 64029

27-310-08-11-02-0-00-000 SBKA LLC 1101 S SEYMOUR RD GRAIN VALLEY MO 64029

27-310-08-09-02-0-00-000 SBKA LLC 1101 S SEYMOUR RD GRAIN VALLEY MO 64029

27-340-02-04-00-0-00-000 SBKA LLC 1101 S SEYMOUR RD GRAIN VALLEY MO 64029

27-340-02-06-02-0-00-000 SBKA LLC 1101 S SEYMOUR RD GRAIN VALLEY MO 64029

27-310-08-09-01-0-00-000 SBKA LLC 1101 S SEYMOUR RD GRAIN VALLEY MO 64029

27-340-02-18-00-0-00-000 SBKA LLC 1101 S SEYMOUR RD GRAIN VALLEY MO 64029



JACKSON COUNTY 

Public Works Department 
 
Jackson County Technology Center (816) 881-4530 
303 West Walnut Street Fax: (816) 881-4448 
Independence, Missouri 64050 
jacksongov.org 

Frank White, Jr., County Executive 

 

  

      May 4, 2022 
 
 
 
RE:   Public Hearing: RZ-2022-625 
 SBKA, LLC 
 
 
Dear Property Owner: 
 
You are hereby invited to participate in a public hearing to be held by the Jackson County Plan 
Commission on a request by SBKA, LLC for a change of zoning from District B-r (Two Family) on 60.00 
± acres to District HI (Heavy Industrial) and for a Conditional Use Permit for a period of 15 years in 
District HI (Heavy Industrial) for earthwork and mining reclamation on 89.44 acres at 8400 E. Truman 
Road.  
 
Please note that this request for a change of zoning affects only the property mentioned above. Adjacent 
properties will not be affected by the change of zoning. Taxes are based on the land use of a property 
not the zoning.  
 
You are being notified pursuant to 24003.5 Chapter 240 (Unified Development Code) of the Jackson 
County Code, as being an adjacent property within 185’ of the subject property.   
 
The public hearing on this matter will be held by the Plan Commission on Thursday, May 19, 2022, at 
8:30 a.m. in the Large Conference Room, 2nd Floor, Historic Truman Courthouse, 112 W. Lexington, 
Independence, MO. 
 
If you know of any interested party who may not have received a copy of this letter, it would be 
appreciated if you would inform them of the time and place of the hearing. 
 
If you have any questions concerning this matter, please contact the Development Division at 881-4577. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
 
Jackson County Public Works  
Development Division 
Randy Diehl, Administrator 
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IN THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 
AN ORDINANCE appropriating $15,900.00 from the undesignated fund balance of the 
2022 Health Fund to cover the increased cost of gasoline for use by the Environmental 
Health, Medical Examiner’s, and Public Administrator’s Offices. 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 5649, August 15, 2022 
 
INTRODUCED BY Theresa Cass Galvin, County Legislator 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Environmental Health, Medical Examiner’s, and Public Administrator’s 

Offices anticipate a need for additional funds for fuel for the remainder of 2022, due to 

the increased cost of gasoline; and, 

 

WHEREAS, an appropriation is needed to place the funds necessary for the purchase of 

gasoline in the proper spending accounts; now therefore, 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Legislature of Jackson County, Missouri, that the following 

appropriation from the 2022 Health Fund be and hereby is made: 

 

DEPARTMENT/DIVISION CHARACTER/DESCRIPTION FROM TO 
    
Health Fund    
002-9999 32810- 

Undesignated Fund Balance $15,900  
Environmental Health    
002-1503 57110- Gasoline  $8,900 
Public Administrator    
002-3501 57110- Gasoline  $3,000 
Medical Examiner    
002-2001 57110- Gasoline  $4,000 

  





Request for Legislative Action 

August 11, 2022 eRLA #593 Page 1 of 4 

Completed by County Counselor’s Office 

Action Requested: Ordinance Res.Ord No.: 5649 

Sponsor(s): Theresa Galvin Legislature Meeting Date: 8/15/2022 

Introduction 

Action Items: ['Appropriate'] 

Project/Title: 

Appropriating the sum of $15,900 from the Undesignated Fund Balance of the Health Fund (No. 002) for 
the purpose of supplementing the unleaded gasoline needs of the Departments of Environmental 
Health, Medical Examiner, and Public Administrator for the remainder of the 2022 fiscal year. 

Request Summary 

This ordinance requests the appropriation of a total of $15,900 from the Undesignated Fund Balance of 
the Health Fund to supplement the adopted budget amounts for unleaded gasoline usage at 
substantially higher amounts than were included in the adopted budget.  Supplementing the money 
eliminates the need for budget transfers or making other programmatic reductions to meet this 
need.  Funding for the departments that are supported by Health Fund are included in this supplemental 
budget request and includes Environmental Health ($8,900), Medical Examiner ($4,000), and Public 
Administrator ($3,000) 

Contact Information 

Department: County Executive Office Submitted Date: 7/27/2022 

Name: Troy Schulte Email: TSchulte@jacksongov.org 

Title: County Administrator Phone: 816-881-1079

Budget Information 

Amount authorized by this legislation this fiscal year: $15,900 

Amount previously authorized this fiscal year: $   0 

Total amount authorized after this legislative action: $15,900 

Is it transferring fund? Yes 

Transferring Fund From: 

Fund: Department: Line Item Account: Amount: 

002 (Health Fund) 9999 (*) 32810 (Undesignated 
Fund Balance) 

$15,900 

Ord. #5649
Sponsor: Theresa Cass Galvin
Date: August 15, 2022
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Transferring Fund To: 

Fund: Department: Line Item Account: Amount: 

002 (Health Fund) 1503 (Environmental 
Health) 

57110 (Gasoline) $8,900 

002 (Health Fund) 3501 (Public 
Administrator) 

57110 (Gasoline) $3,000 

002 (Health Fund) 2001 (Medical 
Examiner) 

57110 (Gasoline) $4,000 

Prior Legislation 

Prior Ordinances 

Ordinance: Ordinance date: 

5636 July 18, 2022 

Prior Resolution 

Resolution: Resolution date: 

21015 July 25, 2022 

21004 July 11, 2022 

Purchasing 

Does this RLA include the purchase or lease of 
supplies, materials, equipment or services? 

No 

Chapter 10 Justification: 

Core 4 Tax Clearance Completed: 

Certificate of Foreign Corporation Received: 

Have all required attachments been included in 
this RLA? 

Compliance 

Certificate of Compliance 

Not Applicable 

Minority, Women and Veteran Owned Business Program 

Goals Not Applicable for following reason: Not spending money 

MBE:   .00% 

WBE:   .00% 

VBE:   .00% 

Prevailing Wage 

Not Applicable 

Fiscal Information 
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 Funds sufficient for this appropriation and/or transfer are available from the source indicated on
the budget information tab.
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History 

Submitted by County Executive Office requestor: Troy Schulte on 7/27/2022. Comments: 

Approved by Department Approver Sylvya Stevenson on 7/27/2022 4:28:37 PM. Comments: 

Not applicable by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 7/27/2022 4:54:55 PM. 
Comments: 

Approved by Compliance Office Approver Katie M. Bartle on 7/28/2022 9:46:11 AM. Comments: 

Approved by Budget Office Approver Mark Lang on 7/29/2022 3:05:28 PM. Comments:  The fiscal note 
is attached. 

Approved by Executive Office Approver Sylvya Stevenson on 7/30/2022 5:05:37 PM. Comments: 

Returned for more information by Counselor's Office Approver Elizabeth Freeland on 8/3/2022 11:26:56 
AM. Comments:  Action item is only appropriate. 

Submitted by Requestor Troy Schulte on 8/3/2022 4:48:10 PM. Comments:  Correction made. 

Approved by Department Approver Sylvya Stevenson on 8/4/2022 11:29:33 AM. Comments: 

Not applicable by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 8/4/2022 11:51:08 AM. 
Comments: 

Approved by Compliance Office Approver Katie M. Bartle on 8/4/2022 12:03:30 PM. Comments: 

Approved by Budget Office Approver Mark Lang on 8/4/2022 2:02:03 PM. Comments: 

Approved by Executive Office Approver Sylvya Stevenson on 8/4/2022 3:39:30 PM. Comments: 

Approved by Counselor's Office Approver Elizabeth Freeland on 8/11/2022 9:51:05 AM. Comments: 



Date: July 29, 2022 Ord #
eRLA ID #: 593 

Org Code/Description Object Code/Description From To

002 Health Fund

9999 - 32810 Undesignated Fund Balance 15,900$            -$  

1503 Environmental Health 57110 Gasoline - 8,900 

3501 Public Administrator 57110 Gasoline - 3,000 

2001 Medical Examiner 57110 Gasoline - 4,000 

15,900$            15,900$            

Budget Office

Supplemental Appropriation Request
Jackson County, Missouri 

Funds sufficient for this appropriation are available from the source indicated below.   

Page 1 of 1

5649

mlang
Approved



IN THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 
AN ORDINANCE appropriating $4,000.00 from the undesignated fund balance of the 
2022 Grant Fund, in acceptance of a grant received from the State of Missouri Office of 
State Courts Administrator, Administrative Services Division, for use by the Jackson 
County Family Court Division. 
 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 5650, August 15, 2022 
 
INTRODUCED BY Theresa Cass Galvin, County Legislator 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Jackson County Family Court Division has been awarded a grant by the 

State of Missouri Office of State Courts Administrator, Administrative Services Division in 

the amount of $4,000.00, to provide funding for the Rapid Response Visitation Project, to 

partially fund parent aides, mileage reimbursement, and administrative fees; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the grant is awarded for the period of July 19, 2022, through September 30, 

2022; and, 

 

WHEREAS, an appropriation is necessary to place these grant funds in the appropriate 

spending accounts; now therefore, 

 

BE IT ORDAINED by the County Legislature of Jackson County, Missouri, that the 

following appropriation be and hereby is made from the undesignated fund balance of the 

2022 Grant Fund: 

  



-2- 

DEPARTMENT/DIVISION CHARACTER/DESCRIPTION FROM TO 
Grant Fund    
Rapid Response Visitation    
010-2157 45618- Increase Revenues $4,000  
010-9999 32810 -  

Undesignated Fund Balance  $4,000 
010-9999 32810 -  

Undesignated Fund Balance $4,000  
Rapid Response Visitation    
010-2157 56790-  

Other Contractual Services  $4,000 
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Completed by County Counselor’s Office 

Action Requested: Ordinance Res.Ord No.: 5650 

Sponsor(s): Theresa Galvin Legislature Meeting Date: 8/15/2022 

Introduction 

Action Items: ['Appropriate'] 

Project/Title: 

Rapid Response Visitation Project 

Request Summary 

The total amount of this grant is $4,000 and there is no local match required. The funding is allocated 
for visitation services to families child abuse and neglect cases including parent aide hours, mileage 
reimbursement, and administrative fees.     

Contact Information 

Department: Circuit Court Submitted Date: 7/20/2022 

Name: carl.bayless@courts.mo.gov Email: carl.bayless@courts.mo.gov 

Title: Phone: 816-435-4775

Budget Information 

Amount authorized by this legislation this fiscal year: $4,000 

Amount previously authorized this fiscal year: $   0 

Total amount authorized after this legislative action: $4,000 

Is it transferring fund? Yes 

Transferring Fund From: 

Fund: Department: Line Item Account: Amount: 

010 (Grant Fund) 9999 (*) 32810 (Undesignated 
Fund Balance) 

$4,000 

Transferring Fund To: 

Fund: Department: Line Item Account: Amount: 

010 (Grant Fund) 2157 (Rapid Response 
Visitation Project) 

56790 (Other 
Contractual Services) 

$4,000 

Ordinance No.:  5650
Sponsor:  Theresa Cass Galvin
Date:  August 15, 2022
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Prior Legislation 

Prior Ordinances 

Ordinance: Ordinance date: 

  

Prior Resolution 

Resolution: Resolution date: 

  
 

Purchasing 

Does this RLA include the purchase or lease of 
supplies, materials, equipment or services? 

No 

Chapter 10 Justification:  

Core 4 Tax Clearance Completed:  

Certificate of Foreign Corporation Received:  

Have all required attachments been included in 
this RLA? 

 

 

Compliance 

Certificate of Compliance 

Not Applicable 

Minority, Women and Veteran Owned Business Program 

Goals Not Applicable for following reason: Not spending money 

MBE:    .00%  

WBE:    .00%  

VBE:     .00%  

Prevailing Wage 

Not Applicable  

 

Fiscal Information 

 Funds sufficient for this appropriation and/or transfer are available from the source indicated on 
the budget information tab. 
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History 

Submitted by Circuit Court requestor: carl.bayless@courts.mo.gov on 7/20/2022. Comments: 
 
Approved by Department Approver Theresa Byrd on 7/20/2022 3:54:25 PM. Comments: 
 
 
Not applicable by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 7/21/2022 12:00:55 PM. 
Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Compliance Office Approver Katie M. Bartle on 7/22/2022 9:12:04 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Budget Office Approver Sarah L. Matthes on 8/8/2022 8:21:29 AM. Comments:  Fiscal Note 
Attached 
 
 
Approved by Executive Office Approver Sylvya Stevenson on 8/8/2022 9:43:08 AM. Comments: 
 
 
Approved by Counselor's Office Approver Elizabeth Freeland on 8/11/2022 9:53:55 AM. Comments: 
 

 



Funds sufficient for this appropriation are available from the source indicated below.   

Date: August 8, 2022 ORD #
eRLA # 589             

From To

Grant Fund - 010

45618 - Increase Revenue 4,000           

32810 - Undesignated Fund Balance 4,000           

32810 - Undesignated Fund Balance 4,000           

4,000           

8,000$        8,000$        
Budgeting

9999 - Non Specific

2157 - Rapid Response Visitation 56790 - Other Contractual Services

Supplemental Appropriation Request
Jackson County, Missouri 

Department / Division Character/Description

2157 - Rapid Response Visitation

9999 - Non Specific

5650

SLMatthes
Approved



JACKSON COUNTY FAMILY COURT 

GRANT PROGRAM INFORMATION 

Ordinance Number:   4883 

Program Name: Rapid Response Visitation Project 

Funding Agency:  OSCA CIP Award 

Funding Arrangements and Use of Funds:   
The total amount of this grant is $4,000 and there is no local match required. The funding is allocated for visitation 

services to families child abuse and neglect cases including parent aide hours, mileage reimbursement, and 

administrative fees.     

 

Funding Period for Grant:   7/19/2022 – 9/30/2022 

 

New or Existing Program/Continued Funding Opportunity:   
This is a new funding source. 

 

Program Description:    

The Sixteenth Judicial Circuit of Missouri, Family Court Division staff have observed a significant increase in 

delays in parent-child visitation in child welfare cases since the onset of the global pandemic in 2020.  In response to 

inquiries to the Children’s Division staff, anecdotally visitation was not occurring due to the shortage of parent aides 

and restrictions put in place for social distancing.  Parent-child visitation is a crucial component of progress towards 

reunification.  The inability to consistently provide this service to children and families is a disservice and places 

them at a significant disadvantage in their quest for reunification.   

 

The Family Court will utilize these funds to remove barriers to parent-child visitation.  The funds will be utilized to 

contract with the local parent aide organization, Family Transformations.  The funds would be used to pay for parent 

aide services and transportation.  The funds would allow for Jackson County Family Court to utilize a parent aide 

from Family Transformations in response to gaps in services.  For example, should the primary parent aide be 

unable to provide family visits due to potential exposure to COVID-19, unrelated illness, leave, etc., we will contact 

Family Transformations allowing parent/child visits to continue without disruption.  

 

Theoretical or Practical Basis:   
Utilizing these funds to purchase contracted services allowing for parent-child visitation to continue with minimal 

disruption.  It is anticipated that this intervention will aide in timely reunification. 

 

Expected Impact:   

Reduce the incidence of delayed or missed parent-child visitation that occurs as a result of a shortage of Parent 

Aides. 

Evaluation Plan and/or Demonstrated Efficacy:   
The Child Protection and Permanency Unit (CPPU) Program Manager will track, on a monthly basis, the number of 

families served, the number of visits that occurred, and the reason the primary parent aide was unable to conduct the 

visit.   

 

 

 

For more information, contact the Family Court Deputy Court Administrator Theresa Byrd  at 816-435-4850 

“An organization of people delivering effective and

culturally-diverse services emphasizing the strengths

of children, youth, families, staff and the community,

in order to assist them to act out of respect for

themselves and others.”



Special Conditions of this award are attached.

State of Missouri 
Office of State Courts Administrator  

 Administrative Services Division
Contract Period

Award 
Amount

Missouri CIP - Local Court Enhancements
Court Improvement Program Supplemental funding for Missouri is available for local circuits to address 
child abuse and neglect case needs stemming from COVID-19 public health emergency to ensure the 
safety, permanence and well-being needs of children are met in a timely and complete manner. 

Contract Number 

 Court/Recipient Information: Project Director: OSCA Program Contact

OSCA Fiscal Contact

Please Sign, Date and Return by e-mail or mail to:

Office of State Courts Administrator 
Attn: Contracts Unit 
P.O. Box 104480 

Jefferson City, MO 65110 - 4480 
osca.contracts@courts.mo.gov

In witness thereof, the parties below hereby execute this agreement.

Printed Name Printed Name 
Earl Kraus

Presiding Judge Signature

Kim Abbott

Shelly Peters 
573-522-2751

There are no special conditions of this award.  Original 
RFP requirements only.

Original Contract

Contract Amendment

Appointing Authority Signature OSCA Signature

Printed Name Date Date

Date

Title 
Deputy State Courts Administrator

  OSCA

Issue Date

May 17, 2022 through 
September 30, 2022

573-522-6768

Theresa L .Byrd 07-19-2022

J. DALE YOUNGS 

YOUNGSDA
Signature

YOUNGSDA
Current Date



IN THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 

AN ORDINANCE transferring $46,155.00 within the 2022 Anti-Crime Sales Tax Fund and 
$138,689.00 within the 2022 General Fund and appropriating $138,689.00 from the 
undesignated fund balance of the 2022 Anti-Crime Sales Tax Fund, in acceptance of the 
Victims of Crime Act Grant for use by the Prosecuting Attorney’s Office’s Victim Services 
Program. 

ORDINANCE NO. 5651, August 15, 2022 

INTRODUCED BY Theresa Cass Galvin, County Legislator 

WHEREAS, the Prosecuting Attorney’s Office has been awarded a Victims of Crime Act 

(VOCA) grant in the amount of $138,689.00 by the Missouri Department of Social Services 

office’s Victim Services Program, for the period April 1, 2022, through September 30, 2022; 

and, 

WHEREAS, the grant will cover partial funding for the salaries of six victim advocates; and, 

WHEREAS, a local match of $46,155.00 is required for this grant; and, 

WHEREAS, a transfer and appropriation are necessary in order to place the grant and 

matching funds in the proper spending accounts; now therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED by the County Legislature of Jackson County, Missouri, that the following 

transfers within the 2022 Anti-Crime Sales Tax Fund and 2022 General Fund and 

appropriation from the undesignated fund balance of the 2022 Anti-Crime Sales Tax Fund 

be and hereby are made: 



DEPARTMENT/DIVISION CHARACTER/DESCRIPTION FROM TO 
General Fund 
Prosecuting Attorney 
001-4101 45941- VOCA $138,689 
Operating Transfers
001-9100 56105- Operating Transfers Out $138,689 

Anti-Crime Sales Tax Fund 
VOCA 
008-4139 47070- Inter Fund Transfers $138,689 
008-9999 32810- 

Undesignated Fund Balance $138,689 
008-9999 32810- 

Undesignated Fund Balance $138,689 
Deferred Prosecution 
008-4154 56092-  

Drug Treatment Services $46,155 
VOCA 
008-4139 55010- Regular Salaries $138,747 
008-4139 55040- FICA Taxes $10,613 
008-4139 55050- Pension Contributions $15,984 
008-4139 55060- Insurance Benefits $19,500 
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Completed by County Counselor’s Office 

Action Requested: Ordinance Res.Ord No.: 5651 

Sponsor(s): Theresa Galvin Legislature Meeting Date: 8/15/2022 

Introduction 

Action Items: ['Appropriate', 'Transfer'] 

Project/Title: 

Ordinance transferring and appropriating funds for the acceptance of the VOCA Grant awarded to the 
Jackson County Prosecutor's Office by the Missouri Department of Social Services. 

Request Summary 

Requesting an ordinance accepting the VOCA Grant awarded to Jackson County by the Missouri 
Department of Social Services for the partial funding of six victim advocates.  The total award amount if 
$138,689.00.  To complete this project, the Prosecutor's Office will provide an additional $46,155.00 to 
pay for the unfunded portions of the encumbants.  Term of the grant is 4/1/22 - 9/30/22. 

Please transfer $46,155.00 from 008-4154-56092 and appropriate $138,689.00 in the following 
accounts: 
008-4139-55010   Regular Salaries  $138,747.00 
008-4139-55040   FICA Taxes  $  10,613.00 
008-4139-55050   Pension Contribution   $  15,984.00
008-4139-55060   Insurance Benefits  $ 19,500.00 

Contact Information 

Department: Prosecuting Attorney Submitted Date: 7/8/2022 

Name: Gina Robinson Email: grobinson@jacksongov.org 

Title: Chief of Operations Phone: 816-881-3369

Budget Information 

Amount authorized by this legislation this fiscal year: $184,844 

Amount previously authorized this fiscal year: !Unexpected End of
Formula 

Total amount authorized after this legislative action: $184,844 

Is it transferring fund? Yes 

Transferring Fund From: 

Ord. #5651
Sponsor: Theresa Cass Galvin 
Date: August 15, 2022
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Fund: Department: Line Item Account: Amount: 

008 (Anti-Crime Sales 
Tax Fund) 

9999 (*) 32810 (Undesignated 
Fund Balance) 

$138,689 

008 (Anti-Crime Sales 
Tax Fund) 

4154 (Deferred 
Prosecution) 

56092 (Drug Treatment 
Services) 

$46,155 

Transferring Fund To: 

Fund: Department: Line Item Account: Amount: 

008 (Anti-Crime Sales 
Tax Fund) 

4139 (VOCA ) 55010 (Regular 
Salaries) 

$138,747 

008 (Anti-Crime Sales 
Tax Fund) 

4139 (VOCA ) 55040 (FICA Taxes) $10,613 

008 (Anti-Crime Sales 
Tax Fund) 

4139 (VOCA ) 55050 (Pension 
Contribution) 

$15,984 

008 (Anti-Crime Sales 
Tax Fund) 

4139 (VOCA ) 55060 (Insurance 
Benefits) 

$19,500 

Prior Legislation 

Prior Ordinances 

Ordinance: Ordinance date: 

5586 December 13, 2021 

5299 December 2, 2019 

5624 May 16, 2022 

Prior Resolution 

Resolution: Resolution date: 

Purchasing 

Does this RLA include the purchase or lease of 
supplies, materials, equipment or services? 

No 

Chapter 10 Justification: 

Core 4 Tax Clearance Completed: 

Certificate of Foreign Corporation Received: 

Have all required attachments been included in 
this RLA? 

Compliance 

Certificate of Compliance 

Not Applicable 

Minority, Women and Veteran Owned Business Program 

Goals Not Applicable for following reason: Not spending money 
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MBE:   .00% 

WBE:   .00% 

VBE:   .00% 

Prevailing Wage 

Not Applicable 

Fiscal Information 

 Funds sufficient for this appropriation and/or transfer are available from the source indicated on
the budget information tab.
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Submitted by Prosecuting Attorney requestor: Gina Robinson on 7/8/2022. Comments: 

Approved by Department Approver Jean Peters Baker on 7/8/2022 1:15:59 PM. Comments: 

Not applicable by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 7/8/2022 2:47:04 PM. 
Comments: 

Approved by Compliance Office Approver Jaime Guillen on 7/8/2022 4:25:18 PM. Comments: 

Approved by Budget Office Approver Sarah L. Matthes on 7/11/2022 7:24:36 AM. Comments:  Fiscal 
Note Attached 

Approved by Executive Office Approver Sylvya Stevenson on 7/11/2022 12:36:55 PM. Comments: 

Returned for more information by Counselor's Office Approver Elizabeth Freeland on 7/19/2022 2:22:01 
PM. Comments:  Please see Crissy's email for needed corrections. Thanks! 

Submitted by Requestor Tina M. Wise on 7/29/2022 12:08:37 PM. Comments: 

Approved by Department Approver Jean Peters Baker on 8/1/2022 10:15:52 AM. Comments: 

Returned for more information by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 8/1/2022 
1:59:34 PM. Comments:  Per department request 

Submitted by Requestor Tina M. Wise on 8/1/2022 8:02:37 PM. Comments: 

Approved by Department Approver Jean Peters Baker on 8/2/2022 9:28:12 AM. Comments: 

Not applicable by Purchasing Office Approver Barbara J. Casamento on 8/2/2022 9:46:24 AM. 
Comments: 

Approved by Compliance Office Approver Katie M. Bartle on 8/2/2022 4:11:27 PM. Comments: 

Approved by Budget Office Approver Mark Lang on 8/3/2022 10:29:38 AM. Comments:  A revised fiscal 
note has been attached. 
 

Approved by Executive Office Approver Sylvya Stevenson on 8/3/2022 11:18:01 AM. Comments: 



Date: July 21, 2022 Ord #
eRLA ID #: 580 

Org Code/Description Object Code/Description From To

001 General Fund

4101 Prosecuting Attorney 45941 VOCA 138,689$          -$  

9100 Operating Transfers 56105 Operating Transfers Out - 138,689 

008 Anti-Crime Sales Tax Fund

4139 VOCA 47070 Inter Fund Transfers 138,689$          -$  

9999 - 32810 Undesignated Fund Balance 138,689            

- 

9999 - 32810 Undesignated Fund Balance 138,689            - 

4154 Deferred Prosecution 56092 Drug Treatment Services 46,155 - 

4139 VOCA 55010 Regular Salaries - 138,747 

4139 VOCA 55040 FICA Taxes - 10,613 

4139 VOCA 55050 Pension Contribution - 15,984 

4139 VOCA 55060 Insurance Benefits - 19,500 

184,844$          184,844$          

Budget Office

Supplemental Appropriation Request
Jackson County, Missouri 

Funds sufficient for this appropriation are available from the source indicated below.   

Page 1 of 1

5651

mlang
Approved









IN THE COUNTY LEGISLATURE OF JACKSON COUNTY, MISSOURI 
 
A RESOLUTION congratulating Marilu Herrick, the Co-Founder and Executive Director 
of the Rainbow Center for Communicative Disorders, on the occasion of her retirement 
on June 30, 2022. 
 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 21026, August 15, 2022 
 
INTRODUCED BY Jeanie Lauer, County Legislator 
 
 
WHEREAS, Marilu Herrick, the Co-Founder and Executive Director of the Rainbow 

Center for Communicative Disorders, retired on June 30, 2022; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Marilu is a pioneer in the field of intellectual and developmental disorder 

services, having founded Rainbow Center in 1977 after seeing a need for intensive 

therapeutic intervention within an academic setting; and, 

 

WHEREAS, since then, the Rainbow Center has provided a positive, self-esteem building 

day school for students with severe communication deficits and behaviors, including, all 

aspects of autism spectrum disorders and Down syndrome; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Rainbow Center moved into its first independent facility in 1990 and, in 

1996, opened Rainbow Options, an adult day habilitation program which now serves fifty 

adults with severe disabilities; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Marilu is a master at creating partnerships in the community, and using her 

skills, she developed a gentle, welcoming culture that empowers its ninety employees 



 

-2- 

and a thriving volunteer environment; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Rainbow Center Day School serves seventy-five students this year and has 

partnerships with approximately twenty school districts across the five-county area that, 

because of Marilu’s reputation and achievements, foster hope for parents and brings 

success for their children; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Marilu believes that “there is always a way to teach someone, it’s just up to 

us to figure out how”; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Marilu’s co-workers will miss her knowledge and expertise and her impact 

will be felt for generations; and, 

 

WHEREAS, her family and friends join in congratulating her on this momentous occasion; 

now therefore, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the County Legislature of Jackson County, Missouri, that the 

Legislature hereby congratulates Marilu Herrick on the occasion of her retirement from 

the Rainbow Center for Communicative Disorders, and extends its best wishes in all of 

her future endeavors. 
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